
 
 

 
MONDAY, MAY 16, 2022 

CITY COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 
WORK SESSION ~ FIREWORKS DISCUSSION, 6:30PM 

 
Regular meeting 7:00 pm 

COUNCIL CHAMBERS 
33568 EAST COLUMBIA AVENUE 

SCAPPOOSE, OREGON 97056 
 

ITEM AGENDA TOPIC                    Action 
Call to Order 
Pledge of Allegiance 
Roll Call 
Approval of the Agenda 
Public Comment ~ Items not on the agenda 
Please sign a speaker request form and turn it in to the City Recorder along with any written 
testimony 
 

1.   Consent Agenda ~ May 2, 2022 City Council meeting minutes 
 

New Business 
2. CEP Applicant Presentations 
 

3. Cancel July 5, 2022 City Council meeting               Approval 
 

4. Cancel August 15, 2022 City Council meeting       Approval 
 

Announcements – information only 
5.  Calendar  
6.  Updates: City Manager, Police Chief, Councilors, and Mayor 
 

Adjournment PLEASE NOTE: IF YOU WOULD LIKE TO SPEAK WITH CITY STAFF ABOUT A PARTICULAR AGENDA ITEM, PLEASE CALL CITY 
HALL at 503-543-7146, EXT. 224, NO LATER THAN 3:00 PM ON THE DAY OF THE MEETING. 

1



 Request for Council Action

CITY OF SCAPPOOSE

Council Action & Status Report

Date Submitted: May 10, 2022

Agenda Date Requested:  May 16, 2022

To:   Scappoose City Council

From: Isaac Butman, Assistant to the City Manager

Subject: Fireworks

TYPE OF ACTION REQUESTED:

[        ]     Resolution    [        ]   Ordinance

[        ]     Formal Action  [    X    ]   Report Only

ISSUE: On July 19, 2021 Council received public comment relating to fireworks being 
used in Scappoose, Exhibit A. Following this meeting, and over the last few months, 
Council expressed interest in discussing Fireworks in the City.

ANALYSIS:  The City of Scappoose Municipal Code does not prohibit Fireworks in the 
City of Scappoose. Section 9.12.030 adopts the State of Oregon Fireworks Law relating 
to the use and sale of fireworks but does not limit the use of fireworks in the city.

The use of Fireworks is regulated by the State of Oregon and the State Fire Marshal, 
under ORS 480.111 through 480.165, Exhibit B. Firework displays for the benefit of the 
public require a permit from the State Fire Marshal and are ultimately under the 
supervision of the chief of police and local fire department. The sale, use, and discharge 
of fireworks may be regulated by either the City or a local Fire District, ORS 480.160.

Fireworks are a complex topic. They are an American pastime, used to note some of 
our most important annual events namely July 4th and New Year’s Eve. Fireworks are 
favored by a large portion of the population as a celebratory activity and are well loved 
and received by a large segment of the population. 

Alternatively, Fireworks are also extremely dangerous in dry conditions and are the 
cause of many fires, burns, and other hazards. Further, the noise and light from 
fireworks can unnerve animals, cause harm to those with light/noise sensitivity, and can 
also be damaging to those with PTSD. 

WORK SESSION

2



 Request for Council Action

Exhibit C is a table showing what other comparator cities do regarding Fireworks. The 
response is varied. Only one of the cities examined actually bans fireworks outright. 
Most limit fireworks consistent with state law, either explicitly or by adopting applicable 
ORS’s. 

Fireworks are difficult to monitor and enforce. Often times, by the time law enforcement 
can arrive at a discharge site after a complaint is called in, the firework(s) has been 
used and those lighting the firework(s) are no longer present. Illegal Fireworks are 
illegal; however, they are still relatively easy to acquire and are used often. 

It is unclear what impact would be felt from banning fireworks in the City as this would 
not change the difficulties relating to enforcement. Even if the sale and use of fireworks 
were banned in Scappoose, they could easily be obtained from the surrounding area, 
and the issues with enforcement would remain. Fireworks are increasingly banned in 
Oregon by the State Fire Marshal and local Fire Marshals due to the necessary 
assessment of dry conditions on an annual basis and, as the area continues to see 
more dry weather, it is likely that bans will continue to become more frequent. 

Staff have asked the Fire District and Legal Counsel to be present tonight while Council 
discusses this topic.

3



simple amenities on that site make it simply ridiculous to consider. And, it would undoubtedly 
be unusable for a substantial part of the year. 
It's not near wetland habitat: it IS wetland habitat. The Cathead idea is neither reasonable nor 
feasible. It could become a great area for a non-invasive nature trail, but not for a dog park. 
City government makes very public statements of regard for the livability of our town.  
Regarding Grabhorn again, the plan for a road through the park-to-be seems both short-
sighted, unnecessary, and very detrimental to the notion of livability. The new businesses and 
organizations moving into Scappoose need a park that is a park for the people that will come 
here with them to work and live, not another thoroughfare. It certainly won't help the Dog Park 
and is not favored by a large portion of people who have responded to plans for it. It is also the 
most inconvenient and unwanted route for additional city utilities. When the new bridge on JP 
West was built, it included the addition of city utilities. If the Smith Road bridge were replaced 
to current standards, it would not only provide the same ability to route and upgrade city 
utilities and would also solve the issue of emergency access to that portion of town. The fire 
department, for example, could just make a right turn coming out of their facility. And I imagine 
it could cost less than the unfavored road that would take up a large portion of park property, 
divide it into sections, destroy a needed stand of heritage cedars, and create even more of a 
traffic hazard than already exists. I've seen no real consideration for that or other option and 
fail to see why that is the case. If the unclear real need for that unwanted road is future 
development, allow me to suggest that the city remind developers that taxpayers don't pay for 
necessities for their projects or their profit, they do! Beyond that, there are simply other 
choices that City Council needs to consider much more seriously. Thank you for your time. 
**end of letter** 

John Riutta, Scappoose, explained he is going to bring you something just a tad different. He 
has been told in the past that there have occasionally been fireworks at these meetings. He is 
not going to bring them, but he is going to talk about them. He stated he and his wife were 
married on July 2nd and for many years they took vacations around this particular time taking 
advantage of the 4th of July but for the past decade or so they have not left their home over 
the 4th of July because they live in reasonable proximity to a number of amateur explosive 
enthusiasts and these folks go to great lengths possibly and go to other States in order to obtain 
the source of their amusement. He explained for most of the 4th of July they are treated to 
explosions that go on well into the night, sometimes into the following morning next morning, 
and they awake to find bits of exploded fireworks in their front lawns, on their vehicles, their 
back porch, roofs, gardens. He stated when he’s talking about fireworks, he’s not talking about 
just the annoying little ones, maybe they're a bit loud and maybe they're a bit bigger than 
somebody would want, but they're not maybe excessively beyond the Oregon limitation of a 
firework that doesn't rise more than 12 inches in the air or expanding a circle circumference 
more than six feet. No, he is talking about large professional aerial shells that rise higher than 
rooftops, that rise higher than treetops, that explode with vast spreads of 25 yards and more. 
He and his neighbors have found debris as far as 75 yards away from where they know they 
were launched. He stated for years they've put up with this, it's the 4th of July after all. They 

Exhibit A

4



don't want to be killjoys and they don't want to get in anyone's fun. They've put up with their 
daughter being terrified as she grew up and they put up with their dog being traumatized and 
having to be sedated and having to sit with her in the central bathroom of our home because 
it's the only room that doesn't have an external wall and doesn't therefore get the full force of 
the concussion of each explosion. But, this past 4th of July as he sat out on his back porch 
watching the explosions from the street adjacent to them and listening as the bits of flaming 
debris rained down on the trees behind their house and wondering which one of them was 
actually going to catch fire, he finally decided he’d had enough. He comes to Council tonight to 
bring to you the fact that we have a problem in Scappoose. If you go up on the hill on the 4th of 
July night, and sometimes if the weather is fair on New Year's Eve, you will see something that 
looks akin to a small professional pyrotechnics display. Now these fireworks are not available in 
Oregon, they are being brought in either from native land, or possibly from adjacent states. 
He’s spoken with the local officers, they've been very professional and very friendly, and 
they've said that the problem they have is that it's difficult to catch the culprits in the act 
because they have to catch them actually igniting these fireworks and even if they did catch 
them, the penalty is not particularly onerous. However, in conversation, we realized that there 
are other things that can be levied. For instance, creating a nuisance and disturbing the peace. 
He explained that he formally worked in the firearms industry, so he is very familiar with the 
ATF and bringing these across State lines into a federal offense. It's an offense in the US Code 
punishable by up to a year in prison. He doesn't think that people fully understand the full 
ramifications of this and he’s not bringing this to Council because it's simply annoying or 
because he’s personally troubled. He would venture to say that probably more than one person 
in this room lives with a dog. He can't speak for cats because he’s never lived with one, but he 
does know that fireworks absolutely terrify dogs, and the reason is because they're hearing is 
so much better than ours. They’re not just terrified of the sound, it's the actual physical 
concussion through the air. They can hear fireworks going off long before we notice them. He 
stated the other group that's in the community, and he thinks we all wish to honor them as 
often as we possibly can, are Veterans. He stated we have many veterans in the community, 
and many are combat veterans. He stated, some are unfortunate enough to have been 
burdened with PTSD. He knows from many of his friends too that our veterans say that this is a 
very real problem and that Veterans all across the country are annually traumatized by being 
subjected to these amateur high explosive displays. He explained they can avoid public displays 
of fireworks such as the ones set off in Saint Helens, but they can't avoid having their neighbors 
suddenly set off Roman candles above their own homes. This is something that we need to 
respect. He stated he doesn’t have an actual solution,  but he would advise that perhaps at 
least an information campaign to let people know what the possible penalties of this could be, 
and what the possible dangers are, because we are in a drought situation again this year and 
any small spark could very easily trip large conflagration that could destroy a sizable portion of 
this town, including putting hard working people and their families out of their homes for an 
extended period of time. He asked Council to please consider this matter seriously and consider 

5



trying to find a solution to it. It's gone on long enough and it does need to stop. He thanked 
Council very much for their time this evening. 

Consent Agenda ~ May 17, 2021 City Council meeting minutes, June 7, 2021 City Council 
meeting Minutes, June 21, 2021 City Council meeting minutes and appointment of Robert 
Backus as alternate member on the Economic Development Committee  

Councilor Poling moved, and Councilor McHugh seconded the motion to approve the Consent 
Agenda ~ May 17, 2021 City Council meeting minutes, June 7, 2021 City Council meeting 
Minutes, June 21, 2021 City Council meeting minutes and appointment of Robert Backus as 
alternate member on the Economic Development Committee. Motion passed (6-0). Mayor 
Burge, aye; Council President Greisen, aye; Councilor Haugen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye; 
Councilor Lesowske, aye and Councilor McHugh, aye. 

New Business 

Grabhorn Park ad hoc Committee Progress Report 2 GPAHC Committee Chair Cara Heinze & 
Co-Chair Kim Holmes-Kantrowitz  

Cara Heinze thanked Council for having her this evening to present on their findings so far. She 
explained everything that was discussed on Thursday night at the meeting which included some 
of the changes that committee members wanted to make, they were able to make them. She 
explained they had a public forum on July 10th and one of the committee members had 
suggested that they have a survey for people who attended the forum so that they can get a 
good idea of how they felt after they were presented with new information. They were able to 
add new questions, they were able to streamline some of our questions, and then several of 
the committee members wanted specific questions added to the survey that were not present 
in the fall survey. She explained it was also suggested that they allow the survey to circulate on 
social media for a couple days just to gain more feedback and she would say that the data that 
we collected was pretty consistent with the original questions. She went over her presentation.  

6



EXHIBIT B 

Oregon Revised Statutes – 2021 Edition 

Chapter 480 

FIREWORKS 

 480.111 Definitions for ORS 480.111 to 480.165. As used in ORS 480.111 to 480.165: 
(1) “Cone fountain” means a cardboard or heavy paper cone that:

(a) Contains 50 grams or less of pyrotechnic composition;

(b) If mounted on a common base with other cones having less than one-half inch of

separation, results, when measured in combination with all other cones on the base, in a total 

pyrotechnic composition of not more than 200 grams; 
(c) If mounted on a common base with other cones having at least one-half inch of

separation, results, when measured in combination with all other cones on the base, in a total 

pyrotechnic composition of not more than 500 grams; and 

(d) Upon ignition has the same effect as a cylindrical fountain.

(2) “Consumer fireworks” means:

(a) A cone fountain, a cylindrical fountain, a flitter sparkler, a ground spinner, an

illuminating torch or a wheel, or a combination of two or more of those items; and 
(b) Any other items, other than exempt fireworks, containing 500 grams or less of

pyrotechnic composition that the State Fire Marshal recognizes by rule to be suitable for retail 

sale to members of the general public for individual use. 

(3) “Cylindrical fountain” means a cylindrical tube that:

(a) Contains 75 grams or less of pyrotechnic composition;

(b) If mounted on a common base with other tubes having less than one-half inch of

separation, results, when measured in combination with all other tubes on the base, in a total 

pyrotechnic composition of not more than 200 grams; 
(c) If mounted on a common base with other tubes having at least one-half inch of separation,

results, when measured in combination with all other tubes on the base, in a total pyrotechnic 

composition of not more than 500 grams; 
(d) Upon ignition produces a shower of colored sparks and may produce a whistling effect;

and 
(e) Is provided with a means for restraining the behavior of the item, such as a spike for

insertion into the ground, a wood or plastic base for placing on the ground or, if designed to be 

handheld, a wood or cardboard handle. 
(4) “Display fireworks” means pyrotechnic devices that:

(a) Are designed for travel into the air or to project effects from a fixed position; and

(b)(A) Are classified by the United States Department of Transportation as Division 1.3

compatibility group G explosives or Division 1.4 compatibility group G explosives; or 
(B) Contain more than 500 grams of pyrotechnic composition and are classified by the

United States Department of Transportation as Division 1.4 compatibility group E or S 

explosives. 
(5) “Exempt fireworks” means the following:

(a) Paper caps containing 0.25 grains or less of explosive mixture and toy guns, canes or

other devices designed for firing those caps. 

7



(b) Snakes or similar smoke-producing items containing 100 grains or less of combustible

substances. 

(c) Model rockets and model rocket motors that are used to propel recoverable models of

rocket. 
(d) Novelties and trick noisemakers.

(e) Emergency signaling devices, if used in railroad, boat, motor vehicle or other means of

transportation for warning or illumination purposes. 

(f) Blank cartridges of a type used:

(A) For theater or other shows;

(B) For signaling or ceremonial purposes in athletics or sports; or

(C) By the militia, an organization of war veterans or other organizations, if parading an

armed color guard. 

(g) Cartridges, shells or gunpowder for use in legally permitted types of firearms.

(h) Military pyrotechnic and signaling devices classified by the United States Department of

Transportation as Division 1.4 compatibility group S explosives that are assigned to and in the 

possession of the Armed Forces of the United States, or an authorized agent of the armed forces, 

as inventory for use by the armed forces or agent in training active members of the armed forces 

in their duties. 
(i) Other items that in the judgment of the State Fire Marshal do not require regulation or

restrictions on sale. 
(6) “Explosive mixture” means a substance arranged in a manner to allow burning in less

than one second. 
 (7)(a) “Fireworks” means: 
(A) Consumer fireworks;

(B) Display fireworks;

(C) Exempt fireworks;

(D) Pyrotechnic articles;

(E) Special effects; and

(F) Other pyrotechnic devices that:

(i) Are capable of producing audible, visual, mechanical or thermal effects through

combustion, deflagration or detonation; and 
(ii) Contain chemical elements and compounds that are capable of burning independently of

atmospheric oxygen or contain flammable liquid mixtures or flammable gas mixtures. 

(b) “Fireworks” does not mean a candle, flaming club, flaming baton or other device that is

designed to keep the flame and thermal radiation in close proximity to the device. 
(8) “Fireworks display” means an entertainment feature at which the public or a private

group is allowed to view a display or discharge that uses or explodes display fireworks or 

pyrotechnic articles. 

(9) “Flitter sparkler” means a narrow paper tube that:

(a) Contains five grams or less of pyrotechnic composition;

(b) Produces colored sparks upon ignition; and

(c) Is activated by igniting paper located at one end of the tube.

(10) “Ground spinner” means a small device similar to a wheel in design and effect that:

(a) Contains 20 grams or less of pyrotechnic composition;

(b) Vents from an orifice located on the side of the tube or elsewhere on the device; and

8



(c) When placed on the ground and ignited, spins rapidly and produces a shower of colored

sparks. 

(11) “Illuminating torch” means a cylindrical tube that:

(a) Contains 100 grams or less of pyrotechnic composition; and

(b) Is provided with a means for restraining the behavior of the item, such as a spike for

insertion into the ground, a wood or plastic base for placing on the ground or, if designed to be 

handheld, a wood or cardboard handle. 

(12) “Local government” has the meaning given that term in ORS 174.116.

(13)(a) “Manufacture” means to make, construct, fabricate or produce fireworks.

(b) “Manufacture” does not mean:

(A) The assembly or fabrication of sets or mechanical pieces for fireworks displays; or

(B) Actions taken within the scope of a certification for conducting fireworks displays or for

a pyrotechnics operator. 

(14) “Pyrotechnic articles” means devices that:

(a) Are designed for professional use;

(b) Are similar to consumer fireworks in chemical composition and construction;

(c) Contain 500 grams or less of pyrotechnic composition;

(d) Are not labeled as consumer fireworks; and

(e) Have identification numbers UN0431 or UN0432 in the United States Department of

Transportation Hazardous Materials Table set forth in 49 C.F.R. 172.101 or an amendment or 

replacement of that identification standard recognized by the State Fire Marshal. 

(15) “Pyrotechnic composition” means a mixture that is:

(a) Composed of a metal powder having a high combustion temperature and an oxidant; and

(b) Capable of an exothermic reaction that produces light, heat, smoke, sound or gas.

(16) “Pyrotechnic device” means consumer fireworks, display fireworks, pyrotechnic

articles, special effects and bird and animal control devices, and other combinations or 

compositions of materials, that produce audible, visual, mechanical or thermal effects. 
(17) “Special effects” means articles containing pyrotechnic composition that, subject to

authorization from the appropriate jurisdiction, are: 
(a) Manufactured, assembled, designed or discharged in connection with television, theater or

motion picture productions, concerts or conference centers; or 
(b) Used for commercial, industrial, educational, recreational or entertainment purposes.

(18) “Wheel” means a pyrotechnic device that:

(a) Is designed to be attached to a post or tree by means of a nail or string;

(b) Has one or more driver units or tubes, each containing not more than 60 grams of

pyrotechnic composition; 

(c) Contains a total of not more than 200 grams of pyrotechnic composition; and

(d) Upon ignition revolves and produces a shower of colored sparks and may produce a

whistling effect. [2013 c.24 §2] 

      480.120 Sale, possession and use of fireworks prohibited; exceptions; enforcement. (1) 

No person shall sell, keep or offer for sale, expose for sale, possess, use, explode or have 

exploded any fireworks within Oregon, except as follows: 

(a) Sales by manufacturers and wholesalers to customers residing outside this state in

accordance with ORS 480.156; 

9



(b) Sales to persons or organizations having obtained a permit from the State Fire Marshal

for supervised public display; 

(c) Sales to railroads, boats, motor vehicle or other transportation agencies, to be used for

signal, warning or illumination purposes in connection with such business; 
(d) Sale or use of blank cartridges for licensed shows or theaters or for signal or ceremonial

purposes in athletics or sports; 
(e) Experimental purposes by a manufacturer of explosives at such places where such

experiments are normally conducted; 
(f) Sale of blank cartridges for use by the militia or any organization of war veterans or other

organization authorized by law to parade in public a color guard armed with firearms; 
(g) Sale of shells, cartridges, gunpowder or explosives for use in legally permitted firearms;

(h) Sales of items described in ORS 480.127 to persons who possess the retail sales permit

required by ORS 480.127 by a person who holds a manufacturer or wholesaler license issued 

pursuant to ORS 480.111 to 480.165; or 
(i) Sales of items described in ORS 480.127 to individual members of the general public for

personal use by taking direct delivery of those items at the time of sale from the holder of a retail 

sale permit issued pursuant to ORS 480.127. 
(2) Law enforcement officers of the state, county or municipality shall enforce the provisions

of ORS 480.111 to 480.165. [Amended by 1983 c.788 §1; 1985 c.789 §1] 

 480.122 [1961 c.293 §2; 1987 c.158 §106; repealed by 2015 c.57 §3] 

      480.123 Use for repelling birds or other animals; permit; rules. (1) As used in this 

section, “responsible charge” means ownership, a leasehold, management or authority to act as 

the representative of an owner, lessee or manager. 

(2) The State Fire Marshal may adopt rules for the use of fireworks to repel birds or other

animals. 
(3) A person having responsible charge of a property may apply to the State Fire Marshal for

a permit to use and explode fireworks to repel birds or other animals from the property. If the 

State Fire Marshal finds that the proposed use conforms with state and federal law and State Fire 

Marshal rules, the State Fire Marshal shall issue the permit. 
(4) Notwithstanding ORS 480.120, a person having responsible charge of a property and

holding a permit issued under subsection (3) of this section may purchase, possess, use and 

explode fireworks for the purpose of repelling birds or other animals from the property. 

Properties for which permits to use and explode fireworks are issued under this section must be: 
(a) Farms;

(b) Forests;

(c) Waste and recycling facilities;

(d) Airports;

(e) Golf courses;

(f) Properties used for the production of commercially valuable fish or seafood;

(g) Estuaries;

(h) Properties located outside of an incorporated city; or

(i) Other types of properties identified by the State Fire Marshal by rule.

(5) Fireworks for use as described in this section must be purchased from a person possessing

a wholesaler license issued under ORS 480.111 to 480.165. 

10



(6) The permit holder shall store fireworks obtained under this section in accordance with

any fire codes that the State Fire Marshal adopts by rule to ensure safe storage of those 

fireworks. When adopting storage rules, the State Fire Marshal shall consider any relevant 

standards for hazardous materials storage established by a national association for fire protection. 

A local government has concurrent authority with the State Fire Marshal to enforce State Fire 

Marshal storage requirements within the jurisdiction of the local government. 
(7) The State Fire Marshal may revoke a permit issued under this section if the State Fire

Marshal determines that the permit holder has violated state or federal law regarding fireworks, 

rules adopted by the State Fire Marshal or the terms and conditions of the permit. 
(8) This section does not require a federal or state agency to obtain a permit under this

section for activities carried out by the agency under ORS 480.124. [2015 c.57 §2] 

      480.124 Use for control of predatory animals allowed. Notwithstanding the provisions of 

ORS 480.111 to 480.165, fireworks may be purchased, maintained, used and exploded by federal 

or state agencies authorized and required by ORS 610.002 to 610.020 to eradicate and control 

predatory animals. Such purchase and use shall be in compliance with rules and regulations 

promulgated by the State Fire Marshal, with the approval of the state agencies authorized and 

required by ORS 610.002 to 610.020 to eradicate and control predatory animals. [1961 c.293 §3] 

      480.127 Permit for retail sale of consumer fireworks; fee; rules. (1) Any person who 

desires to sell consumer fireworks at retail to individual members of the general public for 

personal use shall apply in writing to the State Fire Marshal for a permit at least 15 days in 

advance of the proposed sale. The State Fire Marshal shall issue the permit only if the State Fire 

Marshal finds that the applicant is qualified to conduct the proposed sale and that the proposed 

sale will conform to the provisions of ORS 480.111 to 480.165 and any rules adopted under ORS 

480.111 to 480.165. A fee may be charged for the permit. Subject to prior approval by the 

Oregon Department of Administrative Services and a report to the Emergency Board prior to 

adopting the fee, the amount of the fee shall be set by rule and shall be adjusted subsequently by 

the State Fire Marshal to finance the administrative expenses incurred under this section and 

shall be within the budget authorized by the Legislative Assembly as that budget may be 

modified by the Emergency Board. 
(2) A retail sales permit issued under this section authorizes the sale of consumer fireworks

only in the year for which the permit is issued during the period that begins on June 23 and ends 

on July 6 of the year for which the permit is issued. 
(3) A retail sales permit holder shall store consumer fireworks in accordance with any fire

codes that the State Fire Marshal adopts by rule to ensure safe storage of those fireworks. The 

matters that the State Fire Marshal considers when adopting storage rules for fireworks may 

include, but are not limited to, any United States Department of Transportation requirements 

relating to hazardous materials storage. [1983 c.788 §3; 1991 c.703 §14; 2013 c.24 §3] 

      480.130 Permit for fireworks display; permit for wholesale sale of consumer fireworks; 

fee; rules. (1) All persons, municipalities, associations or organizations or groups of individuals 

desiring to sell, discharge, fire off, explode or display fireworks for a public display, or to sell 

consumer fireworks to persons who possess the permit referred to in ORS 480.127, shall apply in 

writing to the State Fire Marshal for a permit at least 15 days in advance of the proposed sale or 

date of the display. The State Fire Marshal, upon receipt of such application, shall determine if 

11



the proposed sale or display will conform to law and any rules promulgated thereunder. If the 

State Fire Marshal finds that the applicant is qualified to conduct such sale or display and that the 

proposed sale or display is in accordance with the law and all rules, the State Fire Marshal shall 

issue a permit; otherwise the State Fire Marshal shall refuse to issue it. 
(2) The fee for a permit for the public display of fireworks and each permit for the sale of any

fireworks shall be established by rule by the State Fire Marshal, subject to prior approval by the 

Oregon Department of Administrative Services and a report to the Emergency Board prior to 

adopting the fee, and subsequently shall be adjusted to finance the administrative expenses 

incurred under this section and shall be within the budget authorized by the Legislative 

Assembly as that budget may be modified by the Emergency Board. All fees collected shall be 

deposited to the credit of the State Fire Marshal Fund. 
(3) Sales permits for fireworks are not valid for more than one year from date of issue. A

public display permit is not valid for more than 10 days from date of issuance and may authorize 

only one fireworks display during that period. [Amended by 1967 c.417 §24; 1983 c.788 §6; 

1985 c.789 §2; 1991 c.703 §15; 2013 c.24 §4] 

      480.140 Fireworks displays to be under supervision of police and fire department chiefs 

or county court. (1) Every such display held within the boundaries of any municipality shall be 

under the supervision of the chiefs of police and fire departments of the municipalities in which 

the display is to be held and shall be of such character, and so located, discharged or fired as, in 

the opinion of the chief of the fire department, after proper inspection, shall not be hazardous to 

property or endanger any person. 
(2) Every such display held outside the boundaries of any municipality or fire protection

district shall be under the supervision of the county court of the county in which the display is to 

be held and shall be of such character, and so located, discharged or fired as, in the opinion of the 

county court or of a county official duly authorized by the county court, after proper inspection, 

shall not be hazardous to property or endanger any person. 

      480.150 Permits for fireworks sales or displays; rules; security. (1) The State Fire 

Marshal may adopt reasonable rules for granting permits for supervised public displays or sales 

of fireworks by municipalities, fair associations, amusement parks, and other persons, 

organizations or groups of individuals. The governing body of any municipality, or of any 

county, may require liability insurance, or an irrevocable letter of credit issued by an insured 

institution as defined in ORS 706.008 or other form of indemnity deemed adequate by the 

municipality, or the county, from any person, in a sum not less than $500, conditioned for 

payment of all damages which may be caused either to a person or property by reason of the 

authorized display or sale and arising from any acts of any person or agents, employees or 

subcontractors of the person. At the time a permit is revoked, the State Fire Marshal or approving 

authority may include in the revocation order a provision prohibiting the holder of the revoked 

permit from applying for or obtaining another such permit, for a period not to exceed three years 

from the revocation date, if the State Fire Marshal or approving authority finds that the 

circumstances of the permit holder’s failure to comply with applicable sale or display statutes 

and regulations presented a significant fire hazard or other public safety danger. 

(2) The State Fire Marshal or the approving authority of any governmental subdivision may

revoke permits for display or sale of fireworks when in the opinion of the State Fire Marshal or 

12



the approving authority the sale or display of fireworks is not in compliance with applicable 

statutes and regulations governing such sale or displays. 

      (3) Permit fees required by ORS 480.130 shall not be refunded in the event such permits are 

revoked. [Amended by 1967 c.417 §25; 1983 c.788 §4; 1985 c.789 §3; 1991 c.331 §72; 1997 

c.631 §483; 2013 c.24 §5] 
  
      480.152 Publication of advertisement for sale of unlawful fireworks prohibited. (1) No 

person shall publish or cause to be published: 
      (a) Any advertisement for the sale of fireworks the use or possession of which is declared 

unlawful by ORS 480.111 to 480.165. 
      (b) Any advertisement for the sale of fireworks in any county, municipality or fire protection 

district that by law or ordinance has declared the sale or use of the fireworks is prohibited. 

      (2) Subsection (1) of this section does not apply to any advertising medium that accepts such 

advertising in good faith, without knowledge of the violation of law. [1985 c.789 §7; 2013 c.24 

§6] 

  

      480.154 Manufacturer or wholesaler required to maintain records of sale of fireworks; 

shipments to show permit number; confiscation. (1) Each manufacturer or wholesaler of 

fireworks shall keep a record of all sales showing the name and address of the purchaser, the 

state of destination, license and permit numbers, the state and date of permit issuance and a list 

of the type and quantity of fireworks sold. 

      (2) All shipments of fireworks coming into this state must show the appropriate permit 

number of the addressee on the outside of the package. If the permit number is not so shown, 

such shipment may be confiscated by a law enforcement officer or fire protection enforcement 

authority having jurisdiction. [1985 c.789 §8; 2013 c.24 §7] 

  
      480.156 Sale of fireworks to out-of-state resident without valid license or permit 

prohibited; seller to ascertain license or permit requirements of other states; seller’s 

records. (1) It is unlawful for any person to sell fireworks at wholesale to any out-of-state 

resident who does not possess and present to the seller for inspection at the time of sale a valid 

license or permit issued in the name of such out-of-state resident, if such license or permit is 

required to purchase, possess, transport, store, distribute, sell or otherwise deal with or use 

fireworks by the laws of such other state. 

      (2) The burden of ascertaining whether the laws of such other state require a license or permit 

and whether the purchaser possesses such a valid license or permit shall be entirely on the seller. 

Each seller shall record, in a manner prescribed by the State Fire Marshal, each sale described in 

this section. The record shall include the identification of type and quantity of fireworks sold, 

name of purchaser, state of destination, state issuing license or permit and number or other 

identifying description and date of issue of license or permit. [1985 c.789 §9; 2013 c.24 §8] 
  
      480.158 Parents of minor liable for costs incurred in suppressing fires caused by use of 

fireworks by minor; exception. (1) In addition to any other remedy provided by law, the parent 

or parents of an unemancipated minor child shall be liable for costs incurred by a public fire 

agency in suppressing fires caused by use of fireworks by such minor child. However, a parent 

who is not entitled to legal custody of the minor child at the time of the fire shall not be liable for 

such damages. 

13



      (2) The legal obligation of the parent or parents of an unemancipated minor child to pay 

damages under this section shall be limited to not more than $5,000 payable to the same 

claimant, for one or more acts. 
      (3) When an action is brought under this section on parental responsibility for acts of their 

children, the parents shall be named as defendants therein and, in addition, the minor child shall 

be named as a defendant. The filing of an answer by the parents shall remove any requirement 

that a guardian ad litem be required. 

      (4) Nothing in subsections (1) to (3) of this section applies to foster parents. [1985 c.789 §6] 
  
      480.160 Local regulation and effect of state law; local enforcement authority. (1) 

Nothing in ORS 480.111 to 480.165, nor in any permit issued thereunder, shall authorize the 

manufacture, sale, use or discharge of fireworks in any city, county or fire protection district in 

which such manufacture, sale, use or discharge is otherwise prohibited by law or municipal 

ordinance; nor shall any city, county or fire protection district authorize the sale or use of any 

fireworks prohibited by the provisions of ORS 480.111 to 480.165. 

      (2) For the purposes of enforcing ORS 480.111 to 480.165 in an area exempt under ORS 

476.030 (3) within a rural fire protection district, the fire marshal, if there is one, or the fire chief 

of that rural fire protection district has the same enforcement authority as the State Fire Marshal. 
      (3) No person shall deliver or cause to be delivered into any county, municipality or rural fire 

protection district for the purpose of sale to individual members of the general public for 

personal use any consumer fireworks if the county, municipality or rural fire protection district 

by law or ordinance has declared that the sale or use of the consumer fireworks is prohibited. 
      (4) The manufacture, sale, use or discharge of fireworks may be regulated by the governing 

body of a rural fire protection district, subject to the following conditions: 

      (a) The regulation must be by ordinance adopted by the governing body of the district, after 

public notice and hearing, not later than January 1 of any calendar year in which regulation is to 

be operative. 
      (b) The regulation shall not be operative within the boundaries of any city that regulates such 

matters by city ordinance. 
      (c) The regulation shall not prohibit the manufacture, sale, use or discharge of fireworks the 

manufacture, sale, use or discharge of which is authorized by ORS 480.111 to 480.165. 
      (d) The regulation may not limit sales to less than five days per calendar year, and must 

include the five consecutive day period beginning June 30. [Amended by 1983 c.788 §7; 1985 

c.789 §4; 1993 c.185 §32; 2013 c.24 §9] 
  
      480.165 Civil penalty for fireworks law violations. (1) In addition to any other penalty 

provided by law, any person who violates any provision of ORS 480.111 to 480.165, or any rule 

adopted by the State Fire Marshal pursuant thereto, is subject to a civil penalty imposed by the 

State Fire Marshal in an amount not to exceed $500 per violation. However, an individual 

member of the general public who possesses fireworks of a retail value less than $50 is not 

subject to a civil penalty. Each day a violation continues shall be considered a separate offense. 
      (2) All moneys recovered pursuant to this section shall be paid into the State Fire Marshal 

Fund. 

      (3) Civil penalties under this section shall be imposed as provided in ORS 183.745. [1991 

c.856 §§2,3] 
 

14



Comparator City Code about Fireworks? Listed as requiring a special event 

permit for public events?

St. Helens 8.24.050; No fireworks in parks. Yes

Carlton 8.12.120; Adopts ORS. 

8.16.040; Fireworks exempt from noise ordinance.

No

Forest Grove 92.09; Bans illegal fireworks.

91.035; Discharge of legal fireworks exempt from noise 

provisions July  3rd/4th and closest weekend to the 

4th from 7am-11pm, and Jan 1 11pm-12:30am.

No

Junction City Adopt ORS.

Not listed in noise ordinance (not enumerated or 

exempted).

No

Silverton 8.04.030; Fireworks not included in the niussance 

ordinance when allowed under state law.

Fireworks not listed in noise ordinance (not 

enumerated or exempted).

Yes

Mollala 9.13.030; Outlaws illegal fireworks.

Not listed in noise ordinance (not enumerated or 

exempted).

Maybe

Lincoln City 12.16.035; Fireworks outlawed in parks.

5.16.050; Fireworks require event permit.

Yes

Hood River 9.36.025; Limits discharge to Nov 16 - July 14.

8.09; Noise Control, generally.

Maybe. Noise permit required.

Stayton 8.04.150; Noise, not enumerated or excepted 

regarding fireworks.

No

Seaside 131.11; Fireworks outright prohibitied. Rerquires written permission of the 

Parks Manager for an event in a park.

King City 9.28.020; Adopts ORS. No

Aumsville Ord 686; Adopts ORS. No

Exhibit C

15



MONDAY, MAY 2, 2022 
CITY COUNCIL MEETING  

Regular meeting 7:00 pm 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS 

33568 EAST COLUMBIA AVENUE 
SCAPPOOSE, OREGON 97056 

Call to Order 

Mayor Burge called the meeting to order at 7:00 p.m. 

Pledge of Allegiance 

Roll Call  

Scott Burge  Mayor  Alexandra Rains   City Manager 
Megan Greisen Council President Brian Jensen         Interim Public Safety Director 
Brandon Lesowske Councilor Dave Sukau      Public Works Director 
Peter McHugh  Councilor Huell Whitehaus  Assistant to Public Works Director 
Tyler Miller  Councilor Isaac Butman          Assistant to the City Manager 

Susan M. Reeves City Recorder 

Peter Watts  Legal Counsel   

Remote: Councilor Josh Poling; Councilor Jeannet Santiago; and Kimberly Holmes Kantrowitz 

Approval of the Agenda 

Council President Greisen moved, and Councilor Lesowske seconded the motion to approve the 
agenda. Motion passed (7-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Council President Greisen, aye; Councilor 
Poling, aye; Councilor Lesowske, aye; Councilor McHugh, aye; Councilor Miller, aye; and 
Councilor Santiago, aye. 

Public Comment 

Paul Fidrych, Scappoose, read his public comment to Council. 

50yr Plan & Master Plans 

1.

16



Like many other citizens, I spent last Saturday at the Town Meeting and 50-Year Plan work 
sessions.  Firstly, I want to say that it was a fantastic event and great to meet citizens, come 
together, and participate in teams during the work sessions.  Great job. I have been watching 
the 50-year plan meetings and have read the packet information along with the Scappoose 
Housing Needs Analysis created by Eco Northwest.  For background, I also read the 2017 
Housing Needs Analysis also created by Eco Northwest.  Interestingly, both plans are very 
similar and even come up with roughly the same conclusions on growth and land use.  Of 
course, this makes sense, we are a small town with a limited amount of land, we would not 
expect wide, ultra varying changes in just 4 ½ years.  Still, it is important to relook at these plans 
and I commend the city in doing so.  At the same time, we are continuing to build houses and 
approve structures during the process of updating the plan, which makes sense. Work does not 
stop simply because the plan is being updated. As a member of the Parks and Rec Committee, 
we are charged with improving the city’s park system for the good of the citizens.  We use the 
2017 Parks Master Plan as a guide to our work, it was extremely well written, outlining citizen 
feedback, possible amenities and potential land use that falls in line with the 2017 Housing 
Needs Analysis.  As with the city plan, we are excited about the possibility of updating our Parks 
Master Plan as well.  We do not expect large changes to the plan, but as with the Housing 
Needs Analysis, it is always a good to revisit these plans.  During our last meeting Parks 
Meeting, it was surprising to be told by the Assistant to the City Manager that no new capital 
expenditures would be allowed until a Parks Master Plan is created.  Basically this means no 
significant improvements at all to any recreational amenity.  When asked the timeline of a new 
plan, we were told approximately 2 ½ years.  Given that, if the plan outlined any improvements 
to be made, it would take time to work it into the budget, secure funding, create RFPs, permits, 
construction etc.  Conservatively this means it will be over 4 years of literally no significant 
upgrades to Parks for our community.  To put that into perspective, a freshman today would 
see no changes to our public spaces before they leave the community. As stated by the 
Assistant to the City Manager: the only changes that can be made currently are repairs and 
minor changes such as signage & trash cans. Needless to say, it is troubling that the city has 
taken this route.  While the 50-year plan has not stopped city growth, permits, building etc; the 
potential for a new Parks Master Plan has completely stopped us in our tracks.  I watched the 
city council meeting where halting development of parks was discussed, with one board 
member suggesting we do nothing and wait, stating “Failure to Plan is Planning to Fail”.  Well, 
we have a plan, the current Parks Master Plan. And we ask that we be allowed to continue to 
work as a group, with the city, to increase opportunities for our citizens. AKA not just “Signage 
& Trash Cans”.  When the Updated Parks Master Plan is completed, we will work to integrate it 
seamlessly with our efforts. As with the 50-year plan, progress must continue.  I ask the Mayor 
and the City Council to please reconsider their proclamation of no capital expenditures for 
parks so that we can continue to improve recreational opportunities for all our citizens.  
Thank you. (End of comment) 

17



Consent Agenda ~ April 18, 2022 Council Work Session minutes; April 18, 2022 City Council 
meeting minutes; Appointment of Monica Ahlers and Ty Bailey to the Planning Commission 
as full members and Harlow Vernwald as Planning Commission Alternate 
 
Council President Greisen moved, and Councilor McHugh seconded the motion to approve the 
Consent Agenda ~ April 18, 2022 Council Work Session minutes; April 18, 2022 City Council 
meeting minutes; Appointment of Monica Ahlers and Ty Bailey to the Planning Commission as 
full members and Harlow Vernwald as Planning Commission Alternate. Motion passed (7-0). 
Mayor Burge, aye; Council President Greisen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye; Councilor Lesowske, 
aye; Councilor McHugh, aye; Councilor Miller, aye; and Councilor Santiago, aye. 
 
Proclamations 
 
VFW Buddy Poppies  
 
Mayor Burge read the VFW Buddy Poppies Proclamation.   
 
Thank you to the VFW Post 4362 for handing out Buddy Poppies and for your service! 
    
National Small Business Month 
 
Mayor Burge read the National Small Business Month. 
      
National Law Enforcement Week 
 
Mayor Burge read the National Law Enforcement Week. 
 
Council thanked Interim Public Safety Director Brian Jensen and staff for their work.  
 
Interim Public Safety Director Brian Jensen explained it is nice to see City Leadership recognize 
the VFW, which he is a member of, and National Law Enforcement Memorial Week. He 
explained it is a big deal to all the men and women in law enforcement, especially in days that 
we have seen recently.  He stated to Council thank you and he knows the Scappoose Police 
Department will be very happy and proud to receive this.  
      
National Public Works Week 
 
Mayor Burge read the National Public Works Week. 
 
Council thanked Public Works Director Dave Sukau and staff for all the work they do.  
 
New Business 
 

18



Res No. 22-08: A Resolution Declaring Two Vehicles as Surplus Property       
 
Interim Public Safety Director Brian Jensen explained staff is requesting that Resolution No. 22-
08 be passed and adopted. He explained we are requesting that three of the police vehicles be 
disposed of as they are no longer of use to the agency. 
 
Councilor Lesowske stated hopefully we are able to pull some of the parts off the cars that will 
be reusable for potential future use to be a good steward of our dollars.  
 
Interim Public Safety Director Brian Jensen replied yes, all the usable equipment has been 
removed from the vehicles and will be recycled into vehicles that we currently have or are 
getting outfitted.  
 
Councilor Miller moved, and Councilor McHugh seconded the motion that Council adopt 
Resolution No. 22-08: A Resolution Declaring Two Vehicles as Surplus Property.   Motion passed 
(7-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Council President Greisen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye; Councilor 
Lesowske, aye; Councilor McHugh, aye; Councilor Miller, aye and Councilor Santiago, aye. 
    
Res No. 22-07: A Resolution of the City of Scappoose Authorizing Extended Enterprise Zone   
Benefits for a Fourth and Fifth Year to Control Solutions, Inc., Located in the South Columbia 
County Enterprise Zone                           
 
Paul Vogel, Executive Director of Columbia Economic Team, thanked Council for placing this on 
the agenda. He stated in light of small business week and small business month, he brought 
with him tonight a small business owner from Saint Helens, Mr. Kevin Wick. He has requested 
an extension to enterprise Zone benefits three and enterprise zone benefits that he's qualified 
for, the three-year standard exemption. He filed in timely manner, all the pre authorizations 
and the review by the State of Oregon, he's paying at 150% of annual covered wage, he's 
increased his employment by a minimum of 10%. He's actually increased it by 30%, 50% of 
which of whom are women and 30% are historically underrepresented employees. He 
completed the construction in 2021, investing $1.18 million and he's requested the extension 
based upon the expansion and the need to diversify the business, invest in capital and 
diversifying into additional market channels. He's actually in the data logger business, his 
principal area is in monitoring and protecting the quality of vaccines. He explained Mr. Wick 
had the same supply chain problems that everybody else did, including microchips. He 
explained the pandemic invited an awful lot of competition into the industry, into the sector. 
He explained what he's done is reworked his business plan to move into other market channels 
to maintain his current level of employment and expand into other sections and so that would 
be the nature of his request to extend this to allow them time to capitalize and move into these 
diversified sectors.  
 
Mayor Burge asked if St. Helens has already approved this? 
 

19



Paul Vogel replied yes, all of the other five sponsors have authorized this. 
 
Mayor Burge replied his opinion is if the home sponsor, which in this case is St. Helens, has 
already approved it that we should really support their decision on this and support it.  
 
Councilor Lesowske stated to Mr. Wick he appreciates him coming and presenting with us 
tonight and looking at the extension of the enterprise zone. He stated in the resolution, he 
noticed that it indicates the control solution is required to pay employees wages and benefits at 
the average annual covered payroll. He asked could you explain why it is a requirement rather 
than a practice or something that the business does to meet those for their employees on their 
own.  
 
Paul Vogel replied it is in the resolution because its Statute.  
 
Councilor Lesowske replied thank you for the clarification, he appreciates that. 
 
Councilor McHugh moved, and Council President Greisen seconded the motion that Council 
adopt Resolution No. 22-07: A Resolution of the City of Scappoose Authorizing Extended 
Enterprise Zone Benefits for a Fourth and Fifth Year to Control Solutions, Inc., Located in the 
South Columbia County Enterprise Zone. Motion passed (7-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Council 
President Greisen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye; Councilor Lesowske, aye; Councilor McHugh, aye; 
Councilor Miller, aye; and Councilor Santiago, aye. 
  
Follow up on ARPA Funds ~ Habitat for Humanity   
 
Jim Horn explained when we last met, Council wanted them to look into other various 
municipalities and city councils and whatnot that had made decisions to grant ARPA funds to 
local Habitat for Humanity. He explained Jennifer from Habitat has looked into some of those, 
and some certain other minutes like from Lake Oswego and some agreements with Forest 
Grove and all, and he thinks she has submitted those as exhibits. 
 
City Manager Rains stated those documents are in the packets. 
 
Jennifer Anderson explained also in the packet is a graph of their income limits that she didn't 
include last time. She explained she knows that Councilor Miller may have been interested in 
deliberations, which she did have a difficult time finding the deliberations. She doesn’t know if 
he was looking for a discussion qualified census track. She stated as she explained the last time, 
they met this doesn’t seem to have come up as an issue with other municipalities. She 
explained what she has included here is actually most of the information from two projects. 
One is for Lake Oswego and the other is for Forest Grove. She explained the last page submitted 
is just a list of other cities and counties that have given money for Habitat for Humanity 
projects.  
 

20



Jim Horn stated when you look in that packet at the American Rescue plan funding agreement 
between the City of Forest Grove and West Tuality Habitat for Humanity, the opening verbiage 
is this agreement is made and entered into between the City of Forest Grove and the West 
Tuality Habitat for Humanity, funding is being awarded under the ARPA category “To address 
negative impacts caused by the health emergency”. He stated the purpose of this award is to 
provide funding to assist the grantee to make critical home repairs and other home repairs for 
low-income elderly disabled and Veteran families in Forest Grove that have been affected by 
COVID. He explained that kind of dovetails into the present request before the Council because 
obviously it’s for development for low-income families in the Scappoose area. He stated if you 
look at some of the language in the Lake Oswego minutes it states that the ad-hoc committee 
appointed by the Council had met twice and determined four primary priorities and determined 
the grant eligibility requirements which meant considering the structure outreach and 
application so that tourism and hospitability nonprofits and those who help all residents receive 
funding regardless of their grant management capacity. It also states consideration would be 
given to non-profit outreach to those in Lake Oswego that were well known but also doing 
outreach to others that could use additional funding. He stated in looking through these 
materials he really didn’t see any mention of the QCT’s, which has come up in some of our 
meetings. He stated again he thinks that’s an example why in the final rule the QCT’s were not 
meant to be the be-all and end-all criteria for determining eligibility. It said it was a factor you 
could look at but there are other factors you can look at in determining need in a community.   
 
Councilor Lesowske asked Legal Counsel Peter Watts with this information provided does it 
change any of his interpretation that was shared with Council in the past. 
 
Legal Counsel Peter Watts replied no. He explained unfortunately this doesn’t come up that 
infrequently that he goes through various Statutes and Oregon Administrative Rules and 
Federal Guidance and pull-out criteria and present them to you as a Council so you can weigh 
legal risk and then when he looks at other jurisdictions their record is completely devoid of any 
findings that would explain why they’re eligible so why did Lake Oswego think they were 
eligible. He looked to see if Lake Oswego had a qualified census tract (QCT) thinking that they 
probably might not and they don’t and they didn’t make any findings to explain why the area 
that was getting the grant dollars was substantially similar to a qualifying census tract. He 
explained he found the same minutes that Habitat for Humanity found, which didn’t illustrate 
that it was considered. He can’t explain why other lawyers do what they do, he can only speak 
for himself.  
 
Council President Greisen stated to Jennifer Anderson that at the last meeting she mentioned 
there was some leeway with the amount they were originally asking. She asked Jennifer to 
remind Council of those numbers. 
 
Jennifer Anderson replied the original ask was for $282,000 and that would cover the off-site 
improvements, but it would not cover things like the system development charges (sdc’s) or the 
building permits. She explained at the last meeting she said $100,000 and she thinks it would 

21



show a substantial investment by the community and she could use that to write other grants 
and fill in the gap.  
 
Councilor McHugh stated he would like to point out one of the main things they are concerned 
about as a Council is affordable low-income housing. He stated it is really a hard thing to 
accommodate and if there is one entity or organization in this community that actually does 
provide affordable to people who need it is Habitat for Humanity and so whatever risks we 
might be taking he feels is probably minimal. He knows Legal Counsel Peter Watts is an 
outstanding attorney and he appreciates the input but he’s putting it on us if they are willing to 
take, what he would consider pretty minimal risk, but as far as providing some support for 
Habitat for Humanity he thinks we should make every effort to do that, because affordable low-
income housing is a big deal.  
 
Councilor Miller asked what would be the next steps on this? Would it be to see if we first want 
to do it, then decide the actual amount that we are willing to give?  
 
Councilor McHugh asked should we include the Budget Committee in this? 
 
Mayor Burge stated we could bring them back.  
 
City Manager Rains explained anytime we have had these items, even on a regular agenda, we 
still make sure the Budget Committee is aware of them if they want to join us. We are making 
sure they are still staying up to date on when this is being discussed. She explained the Budget 
Committee has been providing input, but ultimately it is Council’s call.  
 
Mayor Burge stated he thinks what Councilor McHugh is asking for is to have another joint 
session with the Budget Committee on the funds.  
 
Councilor Lesowske stated just to confirm there will be no decision made tonight at this 
particular juncture in regards to the dollars being released in his understanding. It was just an 
information gathering and an opportunity for Habit to report back their findings, which they 
have done a great job in providing what we have asked of them. He stated as a group as we 
move forward with ARPA distribution, we would take this into consideration based on their 
request and review. He explained depending on if we have a work session or just bringing the 
ARPA requests to Council, is yet to be determined, is his understanding.  
 
City Manager Rains replied yes, we’d certainly bring this back at a later time and we will make 
sure that all of the Budget Committee members are invited and know that this is up for 
discussion.  
 
Mayor Burge stated what we probably should do is another short work session with the Budget 
Committee.  
 

22



Councilor McHugh stated if we can’t vote on something maybe we have some sort of consensus 
that we feel that ARPA funds can be used to support Habitat for Humanity. He asked if there is 
something wrong with doing some sort of consensus or poll? He stated really that Habitat 
needs to know are we supporting them or not.  
 
Mayor Burge asked if anyone is opposed to believing ARPA funds can be used for Habitat for 
Humanity based on the information Council was provided.  
 
Councilor Lesowske replied he is neither in approval or opposing it. He still needs more time to 
review the information before he can make a decision.  
 
Councilor Poling explained he concurs with Councilor Lesowske. He explained he thinks this 
would be a great use for ARPA funds but he still has to take into consideration obviously legal 
risk and so he is still on the fence. 
 
Councilor Miller stated the only thing that is a little concerning for him is they don’t really have 
a deadline yet for when they are going to decide how the ARPA funds are going to be used. He 
stated until we have a list or decide on the various things that qualify or that we actually want 
to move to maybe a next round or something, it is kind of hard to say and the amounts that 
each applicants wants to receive also, it seems like it would make a lot of sense if we had a 
deadline on this and we decide the different qualifying distributions that could occur and then 
we sit down with the Budget Committee, like Councilor McHugh is getting at, then we decide.  
 
Council President Greisen explained what she is hearing from City Manager Rains is the Budget 
Committee has been invited. She stated we can ask again and if they come, they come and if 
they don’t, they don’t, either way the decision is up to us. She does agree with Councilor Miller 
that it is very difficult to say put this money here or this amount here when we don’t have a big 
picture of all the projects that we are looking at. She explained that she is fine that some money 
is continued to be held on to.  
 
City Manager Rains stated she thinks what they found was every single time they spoke about 
this that it seemed like there wasn’t a lot of progress being made because we had so many 
different items to cover and there had been a request to pull some of these items out and talk 
about them separate and that is why we are doing this. She explained we have actually planned 
on having another work session soon with the Budget Committee being invited where we 
would sort of revisit the remaining amount of money and the remaining requests and what you 
all thought about the requests. She explained these were simply per your request, sort of deep 
dives into a couple of them so you could better understand what it was and then we would go 
back to that larger discussion with that bigger list.  
 
Council President Greisen is in favor of keeping this one on the list.  
 
Councilor McHugh asked what additional information would the Council need to make a 
decision on whether we support Habitat for Humanity with ARPA funds or not?  

23



Councilor Lesowske stated he would like to review the documents that were provided in a little 
bit more depth. He can also reach out to legal counsel for additional information. He would also 
like to speak to members of the community to ensure that that’s something they are interested 
in.  
 
Councilor McHugh asked Legal Counsel Peter Watts what is our liability here, what could 
happen to us in the worst-case scenario? 
 
Legal Counsel Peter Watts replied we would have to return the funds.  He stated Habitat for 
Humanity is a beloved organization by a lot of people. He stated how hard would we be pressed 
if it came up, he can't speak to that. He just kind of has to take the Treasury guidance as it is 
and then inform Council. He stated of all the projects we've looked at, given the household 
income here, given the fact that Scappoose wasn't hit hard by COVID, as compared to counties 
to the east of us and counties in Southern Oregon, given our relatively high household income 
third highest in the state, reportedly actually higher than the city of Lake Oswego's. He stated 
he really wishes he could say this program's wide open and you can spend it however you want. 
He explained it is very important, in his opinion, particularly during times when there's not a lot 
of trust in government, that governments go through this sort of thoughtful exercise. He is glad 
that you are doing that and that you're giving Habitat the opportunity to make their case and 
that you will make the best decision you can based on all the facts in front of you, he is sure of 
that. 
 
Councilor Poling stated he thinks for him, it comes down to this would be a great use of funds 
but his concern for is also what Peter said and really comes down to, you know, if worst case 
scenario if they came back and said those funds are not for that use and we've already spent 
that money, plus we'd also be out the amount of money that we would have got from ARPA 
funds. He stated not saying that that will happen but that is the risk that we are putting out 
there. Whether that's a 1% risk, a 10% risk, whatever it is, that's my concern. 
 
Mayor Burge stated he is going to assume that we're going to bring this back and maybe we can 
do a work session and invite the Budget committee, just on this issue so that we can get that 
input from the Budget Committee. He stated why don't we get this one out of the way first 
before we start going back to others. 
 
Councilor Santiago before the decision is made to bring on the Budget Committee, and this is 
just her personal thought, would it be a good idea for the Council to kind of brainstorm with the 
city attorney if possible. She would like to see for herself visually, the verbiage more clearly and 
sitting down and maybe brainstorming and possibly look at putting a few items into the 
pipeline and just having that initial small list and really looking into the regulation and really 
dissecting. She explained she does this on a daily basis.  This would make sure that we are 
following the regulations from the Government and see if there's any way how we can either 
document or brainstorm or be creative on how we document and use the funds in order for us 
to be covered and that's why I said to have the attorney there. 
 

24



Council President Greisen explained she would like to look at all of the applications at once, not 
just this one, with the Budget Committee.  

Mayor Burge stated why don’t we do a full hour work session on the ARPA funds. 

Councilor Miller thanked staff from Habitat for Humanity for all the information they provided 
that he had asked for. He stated for him it was very helpful and he thinks this is a topic that 
needs to go to our work session and he thinks that at the work session is the time for the 
Council members to advocate for the things that they feel strongly about.  

City Manager Rains explained we will look at the agendas, as per usual they're pretty full, but 
we will get it on there as soon as we can. 

Council thanked Habitat for Humanity for their time. 

Res No. 22-09: A Resolution Authorizing the City of Scappoose to Enter into Grant 
Agreements with the Oregon Business Development Department for Infrastructure Funding 

City Manager Alexandra Rains explained we finally have agreements in hand that would secure 
the funding of $10 million that we were able to acquire because of Senator Johnson. She 
explained we are just looking for permission to sign those agreements 

Public Works Director Dave Sukau explained this is a great opportunity for the City to catch up 
on infrastructure projects that were not even on the horizon until this funding became available 
to us.  

Assistant to Public Works Director Huell Whitehaus stated this is the largest grant amount that 
the City has received in one swoop that I think any of us know of or can recall. 

Mayor Burge replied that's probably true. 

Councilor Lesowske moved, and Councilor Santiago seconded the motion that Council adopt 
Resolution No. 22-09: A Resolution Authorizing the City of Scappoose to Enter into Grant 
Agreements with the Oregon Business Development Department for Infrastructure Funding. 
Motion passed (7-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Council President Greisen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye; 
Councilor Lesowske, aye; Councilor McHugh, aye; Councilor Miller, aye; and Councilor Santiago, 
aye. 

Peace Candle Rehabilitation 

Assistant to the City Manager Isaac Butman went over the data briefly. He explained we 
wanted to make sure to catch both newsletters and allow people the maximum amount of time 
to respond. We received 1,394 responses, which is 17.4% of the population, giving us a very 

25



robust sample size. He explained last time he was here talking to Council about the peace 
candle was in February and you asked that we reach out to the public to see what they thought 
about the colors. Along with that, we also reached out to the developer, the actual owner of 
the candle site. As a reminder, we only have an easement for maintenance of the candle. He 
explained their colors were priority choices of off white, yellow and red. He explained in the 
data addendum, you'll see some tables, he'd like to draw Council’s attention to the first one, 
which is the table that shows the counts of color choice or various portions of the population. 
Red was the most popular at 52%, off white was the next at 42%, and yellow was the third 
choice at 6%. He explained what you would need to decide on is essentially the whole package, 
which is color, potentially lighting if you choose off-white, and signage on the side of the 
candle. He explained it seems to him that the community is liking keeping the candle the way 
that it was, keeping it historically accurate so he would propose not changing the signage too 
much on the candle. 
 
Council President Greisen stated that no matter what decision they make someone’s not going 
to be happy, but that it is acknowledged that we did take the time to put out a survey and ask 
the community and to some people this candle means nothing and some people this candle 
means everything. We are being thoughtful and mindful of this decision and the impact that it 
has on our community.  
 
Councilor Miller is in line with the winning survey color which is red and the context for his is 
that he grew up here and he loved the red barn. Keeping the candle red to him is just a piece of 
history and he thinks keeping red is important.  
 
Councilor McHugh stated he likes red. 
 
Councilor Lesowske stated we asked for the people’s response and the people’s response was 
red, so he will follow within their footsteps. He asked for clarification, if it was off-white and we 
did have a lighting system we could choose to have it as red as part of that lighting system by 
illuminating it to be red, but he thinks people are indicating the paint color here.  
 
Councilor Poling stated he agrees with the citizens, as he was personally leaning towards red 
himself. 
 
Councilor Santiago explained she took the survey and chose red. She also agrees with Council 
that the community chose red and she thinks we should honor that.  
 
Council President Greisen moved, and Councilor Miller seconded the motion that Council direct 
Staff to proceed with rehabilitation of the Peace Candle using the following design elements: 
paint the Candle red; with clear or white up lighting and keep the basic current signage that is 
painted on the candle. 
 

26



Councilor McHugh asked if Council will be approving the final welcome to Scappoose sign? 

Assistant to the City Manager Isaac Butman replied yes, he can bring it back. He explained it is 
very significantly similar, it is just basically repainted.  

Mayor Burge asked if there is going to be anything at the candle location that talks about the 
history? 

Assistant to the City Manager Isaac Butman replied yes, there will be a sign that talks about the 
history.  

Public Works Director Sukau asked as we pick red, that leads to a whole selection of things for 
paint. He asked Council if they have a vision of what that red might look like? 

Mayor Burge stated he would try to make it as close to what it was. 

Council President Greisen replied she prefers a matte not a shine. 

The general consensus of Council was a paint color as close to the current red, when it was 
new.  

Motion passed (7-0). Mayor Burge, aye; Council President Greisen, aye; Councilor Poling, aye; 
Councilor Lesowske, aye; Councilor McHugh, aye; Councilor Miller, aye; and Councilor Santiago, 
aye. 

Announcements – information only 

Calendar  

Mayor Burge went over the calendar.  

Updates: City Manager, Police Department, Councilors, and Mayor 

City Manager Rains stated she just wanted to thank all the members of staff that helped set up 
the Annual Town Meeting, as they put a lot of work into that and she thinks it turned out really 
well. She also thanked all the members of Council for attending as well. 

Public Works Director Sukau explained as most of you know we just came off of what he 
believes is the highest record rainfall in the month of April. He explained they are doing their 
best to keep up with the parks, but right now mowing is virtually impossible. 

27



Councilor Poling thanked everyone who went to the Annual Town Meeting, including all the 
citizens that were involved. He thought it went very well. He thanked staff for all their hard 
work. 

Councilor Santiago stated she is so sorry she missed the Annual Town Meeting. 

Councilor Miller thanked staff and all City Council for attending the Annual Town Meeting. He 
stated it was really awesome to see all the participation.  

Council President Greisen stated there were several proclamations this evening, but this week 
is also recognized as teacher appreciation week and yesterday, the 1st was actually principals’ 
day and she just wanted to thank everyone who engages with our youth. She thanked the local 
small businesses. She is really grateful for the Public Works Department. She stated literally 
they keep our City functioning, so thank you. She stated local law enforcement week and then 
the VFW was here tonight and these are literally citizens that put their life on the line for us, 
and she appreciates it, so thank you. She stated the Annual Town Meeting is always such a 
pleasure to engage with the citizens, and as Councilor Miller said just their engaging 
conversations about what they want Scappoose to be and what its like was very humbling and 
exciting. She explained this weekend she was able to attend the High School play of You’re a 
good man Charlie Brown. They took their kids, and they loved it and it is just so amazing that 
high schoolers can do such great amazing things and that we’re raising and fostering that in our 
community.  She explained the Grant Watts Parent Organization auction closed this week and 
she just wanted to thank the community, as they raised over $20,000 for their school, which is 
great. She stated in regard to our Parks Master Plan she would say personally and she doesn’t 
know if she is sharing this with other Councilors but she thinks the idea of we will never or not 
address any sort of improvements in a park until that master plan is revamped is, just in her 
opinion, is not the reality. She stated they have never made an executive decision up there to 
do that. She stated obviously they won’t be making huge investments in something that we are 
not sure about if we don’t have a plan. She stated as they have mentioned that plan was 
created by an intern at the time and it is a great starting point, but things evolve and change 
and we’re at the point where we need some more hard concrete numbers that are a little more 
realistic in order to apply for grants and make strategic decisions and budget for parks. She just 
wanted to clarify that personally she is a supporter of parks and the improvements in them and 
she thinks that people up here feel the same way.   

Councilor Lesowske explained two weeks ago he had the opportunity on Earth Day to go down 
to Chapman Landing and volunteer some time in doing a beautification of the space down 
there. One of the things that he most enjoyed about that time is just having the opportunity to 
have a vision of what that asset will provide to our Community as an anchor, as a connecting 
spot for individuals to come and connect with nature and with each other. He is really excited 
on our master plan as we move forward to ensure that we create a space that is accessible, safe 
and utilized for all ages of our Community members. He wanted to thank both the Scappoose 
Bay Watershed and our Parks and Rec Committee for organizing, not only the litter clean up or 
the beautification of that space, but also other events within the community, a scavenger hunt, 

28



for families and or individuals to go and see our current parks and engage with them. He also 
wants to echo everyone's response into this weekend's Annual Town Meeting, as it is always a 
great function and it's always great to see new faces, but also other reoccurring faces that 
continue to be engaged within our community. It shows that people are extremely passionate 
about where we are heading and as elected officials, he thinks it's such an important thing that 
we represent the voice of the of the folks that elected us and put us into these positions. He 
stated it was a great turn out, great way to host. He thanked City staff for all their participation 
and setting up and being able to launch this in person event once again for us.  

Councilor McHugh stated he would like to second everything Councilor Lesowske said about 
Earth Day. He didn’t participate, but he heard good reports, and was very pleased. He really 
likes the emphasis in our newsletter that we're getting on new businesses. He thinks that's 
really neat, as often as we can do that he thinks it really pays off and gives a little shout out to 
some of the new businesses in the area. He stated it probably doesn't even have to be new 
businesses, it could just be small businesses in our community. He thought the last newsletter 
was really well done. He stated nice job everybody on the Annual Town Meeting. He 
appreciates everybody's work and thinks it went very well. He stated regarding Paul Fidrych’s 
comment at the beginning of the meeting, he thinks there's a piece of information missing 
there or misunderstanding. He stated we have talked about parks and rec over and over again, 
we've talked about right in this meeting here or some of our meetings maybe doing the 
pickleball courts and instead of using ARPA funds we'll use funds from the operating budget. So 
he thinks there's a piece of information that was missing there that Paul was saying that there's 
no funds at all to be used, because he thinks that we have talked about using funds and we've 
had a general consensus on doing that. He stated we can't put things on hold indefinitely.  

Mayor Burge explained he was going to say in regard to the master plan you go forward with 
the plan you have, not the plan you want or working on because that plan's currently in place. 
He thinks there's just a miscommunication there. He thinks the desire from the Council is that 
we move forward on updating the master plan. He thinks the Council's desire is to see that 
updated and the biggest problem is that if it's not in the master plan, it makes more difficult to 
get a grant. Sure.  

City Manager Rains replied she thinks adding things to the master plan for that reason helps a 
lot, like having updated numbers, when you're going for grants is helpful. She thinks there is a 
lot of really good background information in the plan that we can certainly use and push into 
the new plan. You could use the starting off point, but we have acquired new properties since 
then. We did a separate little master plan on the Vista property. We could talk about maybe 
incorporating some of that even into this plan. There has just been things that have happened 
since then that could be updated. 

Mayor Burge talked about the Annual Town Meeting and how great it was. He explained you 
have people that come up to you and want to talk about a subject that you weren't even 
thinking about. He stated besides all the technical stuff that we got done in the community 
coming together to plan the future, which is fantastic, those individual conversations I think 

29



were equally as fantastic about the meeting. He thanked everyone for their efforts during the 
Annual Town Meeting. 

Adjournment  

Mayor Burge adjourned the meeting at 8:27pm. 

_______________________________ 
Mayor Scott Burge 

Attest: 

_____________________________________ 
City Recorder Susan M. Reeves, MMC 

30



City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue
Scappoose, Oregon 97056

Staff Contact:  Susan Reeves 503.543.7146

1
Ver. 2.1.2022.7

Community Enhancement Program Application
Applicant/Organization Name: 

Project Title: 

Amount Requested: 

Organization Information
Federal Tax ID No: Organization Type:

If other, describe:
Brief description of organization:

Authorized Signer

Name:

Phone: Title:

Email:
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Project Contact (If different than authorized signer)

Name: 

Phone: Title: 

Email: 
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Nonprofit 501c3

Other

Amani Center (Columbia County Child Abuse Assessment Program)

Amani Center Children's Advocacy Center  Server Upgrade/Update

$5000

✔
93-1295275

The Amani Center provides forensic child abuse interviews and medical 
assessments, as well as follow up and referral support, for children and families 
who may have been impacted by abuse or neglect, with the primary goal of 
providing quality, local, responsive evaluative services to every child, aged 0-18, 
who may need our services, in Columbia County.

Beth Pulito

503-318-0568 Development Manager

info@amanicenter.org

1621 Columbia Blvd
St. Helens, OR 97051

PO Box 1001
St. Helens, OR 97051

Amelia Kercher

503-318-0400 Executive Director

bpulito@amanicenter.org

1621 Columbia Bvd
St. Helens, OR 97051

PO Box 1001
St. Helens, OR 97051

2.

31



Ver 2.1.2022.7 2

Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 
question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this.

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your
organization.)

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project.

The Amani Center provides Child Abuse Forensic Evaluations and Family Support Services for victimized 
children in Scappoose and Columbia County, ensuring that alleged child abuse victims in Columbia County are 
provided with quality, trauma-informed medical and forensic assessment/intervention and support services in a 
secure, timely and developmentally appropriate manner. Outside of the recent years impacted by the Covid-19 
pandemic, the number of requests for the Center's assessment/treatment services had continued to increase 
each year, more than doubling from 2015 to 2019. As we exit the pandemic, service needs are, again, on the 
rise as more children are referred to the Amani Center for assessment needs and families are supported 
through systems navigation, follow up services, and continued access to Amani Center staff through the 
investigative process.

The importance of our assessment team, is crucial to the victim, their caregivers and our community partners. 
Our team is integral to the physical and emotional welfare of the child. The City of Scappoose has a 5.7% 
higher rate of people under the age of 18 years than Columbia County's average (per 2020 census). Last year, 
nearly 16% of the clients served by the Amani Center were residents of Scappoose and/or victimized in 
Scappoose. Additionally, 15% of the total services provided by the Amani Center went to children and families 
from Scappoose. In 2021, we provided 149 assessment services, with 20 of those from Scappoose.

The Amani Center is requesting grant funding to support a critical upgrade to our aging server. The anticipated 
life-span of our current server is less than a year and its current capability is slow and inefficient. Our on-site 
computer server is used to support safe storage and transmission of our assessment findings, forensic interview 
recordings, medical exams and DMP reviews, all recordings and reports, vital client records, case 
documentation, as well as other agency information, in a HIPAA compliant manner. The server coordinates all 
of our direct service operations such as connecting to critical equipment like our Cortex Flo camera and 
I-Record forensic interview recording systems. It also manages the internet allowing access our client
management database to record client case data, as well as our e-mail server where we receive referrals and
communicate with investigative partners in our MDT. It is critical for records distribution, MDT coordination and
victim advocacy. Without a functioning server our operations would grind to a halt.

In addition to supporting our client services, our server supports our administrative staff and operational 
functions as well. Although many of our administrative software and platforms are housed in the cloud, 
administrative staff need to access these tools to support daily operations (i.e. email, bookingkeeping, supporter 
databases), public communications (i.e. website, social media), and medical billing software. Administrative staff 
utilize the server to operate within HIPAA guidelines, as some administrative functions require accessing private 
client and donor data. An effective and efficient server will support all Amani Center employees in productivity, 
security and workflow.

With new clients added to our server storage every year, capacity is continually challenged. Our medical and 
forensic assessment records are held nearly indefinitely. The statute of limitations in Oregon varies by crime, 
but often our records relate to types of crime where, because the child was under 18 at the time of the crime, 
the statute of limitations lasts until that child is 30 years old. These records need to be preserved for that length 
of time at minimum. The records need to remain safe and secure until if/when they are needed to be presented 
as evidence in court for a child or family seeking justice in cases of child maltreatment and we take that 
responsibility seriously.

The server equipment is quoted at $17,888. We have received a partial grant from NCA to cover 72% of the 
cost of the system (in accordance with the historical 72% expense related to direct client services that NCA is 
allowed to offer funding for). We are requesting the balance of the server under this grant with the City of 
Scappoose in the amount of $5000, and the Amani Center will fund the remainder from unrestricted funds from 
our organizational budget. Due to backorders on semiconductor and computer parts, it is imperative that the 
Amani Center place an order for this equipment as soon as possible. The $5000 in funding will cover the 
reduction in unrestricted funds that the Amani Center has to provide to begin the purchasing process of this 
critical piece of equipment for the Center to remain fully functional and able to retain necessary records for our 
clients and investigative partners.

32



Ver 2.1.2022.7 3

3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations
as it relates to this project.

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most
vulnerable Scappoose residents.

The main task for this project is purchasing a server that best fits the Amani Center's needs, both now and into 
the future.

Based on current data usage and growth over the last few years the suggested server (by our IT partner More 
Power Tech Group) is anticipated to last approximately 7 years. The quote from More Power Tech Group 
(MPTG) was judiciously thought ou tand custom engineered in tandem with our IT team of partners, to not only 
meet, but exceed the IT demands at the Amani Center, tomorrow, next year, and far into the future.

Because of technology shortages around the world, the process has been started to make this purchase so that 
the equipment can be installed by the end of 2023 (ahead of any anticipated failure of our current server 
equipment). A recent NCA Equipment grant award has been received in the amount of $12,880 with the 
stipluation that funds should be spent by the end of May 2022. Reimbursement for the purchase will be 
requested from NCA (as is standard protocal for NCA grantees in receiving funds after purchases are made so 
that receipts may be verified). The remaining balance ($5008) will initially be covered by valuable unrestricted 
funds from the Amani Center budget. City of Scappoose CEP grant funds will offset the balance of the server 
purchase (up to $5000, as awarded by City of Scappoose Council), allowing the Amani Center to fully fund this 
project through grant funding and retain unrestricted funds for use in other areas of organizational needs.

The remaining coordination will be with MPTG for installation of the equipment, included in the $17,888 
purchase.

The Amani Center has established Civil Rights Policies for both Clients and Employees. 

Client Civil Rights Policy:
The Amani Center operates its program, services and activities in compliance with federal nondiscrimination 
laws. No person shall, on the basis of race, color, national origin (including limited English proficiency), 
disability, religion, sex, gender identity, sexual orientation, or age, be excluded from participation in, be denied 
the benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to discrimination under any of our programs. Not only does the Amani 
Center comply with federal nondiscrimination laws but a culture of inclusivity, civil rights, equality and justice is 
central to the efforts of our organization. All Staff members, volunteers, clients, customers and program 
participants are encouraged to report any violation and the Amani Center is committed to swift responsive 
action regarding any concern.

In addition to existing Civil Rights Policies, the Amani Center is dedicated to ensuring quality care and services 
to ALL clients who enter our doors. We have recently established a new Multidisciplinary Team Coordinator to 
assist with countywide outreach, ensuring even the most remote, vulnerable and underserved populations in our 
community receive equitable access to our services. Addiitonally, we are undergoing extensive DEI training at 
the board and staff level, including all levels of staff, addressing DEI, implicit bias, inclusive hiring practices, 
cultural competency, and the like. The Amani Center takes very seriously the fact that all persons deserve 
equitable and adequate care, regardless of identifying factors such as those listed above. We include 
socio-economic status and ability to pay in these factors as well. It is our goal to end child abuse for all children 
in Columbia County and Scappoose because all children have a right to live in a safe, stable and secure 
environment where they can learn, grow and thrive.

33



Ver 2.1.2022.7 4

5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary?
Please explain.

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals?

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project?

This funding will be the final piece to establish a fully grant-funded server for the Amani Center.

The Amani Center is able to support the current City of Scappoose Council Goals, as well as sustain the 
community's Vision Statement.

The Amani Center is proud to be a partner with Scappoose Police Department to help keep Scappoose one of 
the safest communities in Oregon. Scappoose Police Department may refer any child who may have been 
impacted by abuse, neglect or witness to violence. The Amani Center staff work side-by-side with Scappoose 
Police Department, DHS and families to ensure that appropriate services are offered. Additionally, the 
Multidisciplinary Coordinator works with on outreach with Scappoose Police Personnel to increase collaboration 
with community partners in cases of child maltreatment and providing access and support for children and 
families who have been possible victims. Further, the Amani Center is committed to providing law enforcement 
a secure facility to observe forensic interviews, as well as reports and DVD recordings of interviews to further 
assist with investigations.

This collaborative endeavor provides law enforcement with specialized child forensic interviewing and medical 
examinations for their cases in a trauma-informed manner. Additionally, it contributes to reducing further trauma 
that child victims may experience by providing the child friendly and safe environment to collect case 
information and to ensure the safety of child victims, thereby supporting part of Scappoose's Vision Statement 
of a Caring Community where people will feel safe and can be at peace in their homes.

This project improves the the speed and function of our server by replacing the outdated and slow one we 
currently have. It also provides increased capacity of our server to preserve critical medical records, victim 
forensic interviews and vital records & reports associated with various cases of child maltreatment. It may take 
years (and/or multiple disclosures) for investigators to build a case and take it to court. The preservation of 
these records is imperative to bring alleged offenders to trial and provide justice for children who have been 
impacted by abuse and neglect. It is our agency's responsibility to keep this investigative data in tact until it is 
needed by investigators and prosecutors, or until the statute of limitations runs out to retain this information. In 
either case, that could take up to 30 years of growing data that is taxing our current system and threatening its 
effectiveness as early as the end of 2022. In recent peak years we have served as many as 350 children, and 
185 in 2021. Every child deserves closure in their case, and we want to make sure we can provide the 
necessary documentation for every single one of them.

34



5
Ve

r. 
2.

1.
20

22
.7

PPr
oj

ec
t B

ud
ge

t

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 y

ou
r O

rg
an

iza
tio

n:

Ha
s t

he
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 S
ca

pp
oo

se
 C

EP
 g

ra
nt

 fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
 b

ef
or

e?

If 
yo

ur
 o

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
is 

su
bm

itt
in

g 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 p

le
as

e 
ra

nk
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 im

po
rt

an
ce

, 
w

ith
 1

 b
ei

ng
 th

e 
m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t. 
Ea

ch
 ra

nk
 ca

n 
on

ly
 

be
 u

se
d 

on
ce

.

   
   

If 
so

, w
ha

t y
ea

r a
nd

 h
ow

 m
uc

h?
Pr

oj
ec

t R
an

k:

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
ud

ge
t: 

in
clu

di
ng

 m
on

ey
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 so
ur

ce
s u

se
d 

fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
.

Li
ne

 It
em

CE
P 

Fu
nd

s
O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
Fu

nd
s

O
th

er
 F

un
ds

To
ta

l

To
ta

ls:

Ex
pl

ai
n 

so
ur

ce
s o

f O
th

er
 F

un
ds

Am
ou

nt
St

at
us

 (C
om

m
itt

ed
, A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Su

bm
itt

ed
, P

ot
en

tia
l S

ou
rc

e,
 e

tc
.)

17
,8

88

le
ss

 th
an

 1
%

no

1

Se
rv

er
50

00
8

12
,8

80
17

,8
88

50
00

8
12

88
0

17
,8

88

N
at

io
na

l C
hi

ld
re

n'
s 

Al
lia

nc
e 

20
22

 E
qu

ip
m

en
t G

ra
nt

12
,8

88
C

om
m

itt
ed

Am
an

i C
en

te
r U

nr
es

tri
ct

ed
 F

un
ds

8
C

om
m

itt
ed

35



City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 
Scappoose, Oregon 97056

Staff Contact:  Susan Reeves 503.543.7146

Ver. 12.2021.1 1

Scappoose CEP Interim Project Report
Applicant/Organization Name: 

Project Title: 
Interim Project Reporting Contact 

Name: 

Phone: Title: 

Email: 
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Year Funded Estimated Date of Completion

Name of organizations that 
partner or collaborate on this 
project.

Estimate how many people in the community have benefited 
from this project to date.

1) Please describe how the CEP Grant has been used to date; attach photos, promotional
information, brochures, project reports, or other supportive materials.

Amani Center (Columbia County Child Abuse Assessment Program)

Amani Center Children's Advocacy Center – Server Upgrade/Update

Beth Pulito

503-318-0568 Development Manager

info@amanicenter.org

1621 Columbia Blvd
St. Helens, OR 97051

PO Box 1001
St. Helens, OR 97051

36



37



City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue
Scappoose, Oregon 97056

Staff Contact:  Susan Reeves 503.543.7146

1
Ver. 2.1.2022.7

Community Enhancement Program Application
Applicant/Organization Name: 

Project Title: 

Amount Requested: 

Organization Information
Federal Tax ID No: Organization Type:

If other, describe:
Brief description of organization:

Authorized Signer

Name:

Phone: Title:

Email:
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Project Contact (If different than authorized signer)

Name: 

Phone: Title: 

Email: 
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Nonprofit 501c3

Other 

CASA for Children, Inc.

CASAs for Children in Foster Care in Scappoose

$5,000

✔
93-0923866

We advocate for the best interests of abused and neglected children who are in
custody of the state and under the protection of the court. We dedicate our
resources to recruiting, training, and supporting citizen advocates to provide
quality advocacy to as many children as we can.

Betsy Stark Miller

503-988-5115 Executive Director

bmiller@casahelpskids.org

1401 NE 68th Ave, Portland, OR 97213

Laura Collins

503-988-5115 Development and Communications Director

lcollins@casahelpskids.org

1401 NE 68th Ave, Portland, OR 97213

38



Ver 2.1.2022.7 2

Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 
question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this.

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.)

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project.

CASA for Children's unwavering mission is advocating for the best interests of abused and neglected children in
the foster care system. Our agency dedicates our resources to recruiting, training, and supporting citizen CASA
volunteers (Court Appointed Special Advocates or CASAs) who help us carry out this mission and vision.

Our organization was founded in 1986 to serve Multnomah County, expanded in 1999 to Washington County,
and added Columbia County in 2015. Since CASA’s for Children inception, (and between all 3 counties), over
26,000 children have received support and advocacy from one of our agency’s CASAs.

A $5,000 grant from the City of Scappoose will support our agency’s FY22 goal of serving 115 children from
Columbia County with a CASA, including 16 children in foster care in Scappoose. A CASA is appointed by a
judge to learn a child's history, meet with the child, familiarize themselves with the birth and foster families,
determine needs and best interests, and advocate for services and interventions while working toward a safe
and permanent home.

In FY22, we have already exceeded our annual goal for the number of CASAs in Columbia County (goal of 50
and we currently have 57). However, the need for increased community funding, including from local city
funders, is critical given the significant impacts of the pandemic and our new Columbia County pilot program.
This new pilot program as of Spring 2022 will help Columbia County to serve 100% of foster youth residing in
Columbia County and has received universal support from the judges in the county.

The state of Oregon mandates that every child is entitled to a CASA, and this pilot program will help us meet
that mandate. The reality is, even though the state law governing CASA work states that every child in foster
care is entitled to a CASA, this is what is referred to as an “unfunded” mandate meaning that CASA for Children
needs private funding to allow us to serve a greater number of children.

In fact, as a result of the COVID-19 pandemic, the need is tremendously urgent. On top of the normal dire
circumstances, the COVID-19 pandemic compounded the level of trauma by putting more pressure on parents
than ever before and removing so many children from their safety net of supports and mandatory reporters.
Many foster placements were impacted by the pandemic with families being stretched thin and not able to
provide support. Additionally, most local juvenile facilities have been at capacity leaving very few options for
safe and stable homes for children in need.

We have also seen both locally and nationally that cases of child abuse were more severe and extreme. Child
welfare professionals are still deeply concerned and believe that numbers of child abuse reports and removals
from homes will increase in a frightening way as children have more exposure to their safety nets of mandatory
reporters. The current need is distressing and has profound implications for the future for youth and our
community. The CASA model is proven effective at significantly improving a child's circumstances. Multiple
sources of longitudinal research report that a child with a CASA has significantly better outcomes than children
without.

39



Ver 2.1.2022.7 3

3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project.

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents.

Timeline of project: July 1, 2022 - June 30, 2023.

While other organizations provide support and services for children in foster care, no other organizations have
this unique, legal standing. CASAs are appointed to the child welfare case by a judge of the juvenile court as a
full legal party to the proceeding with legal standing in the case. CASAs will work closely with community service
providers, caseworkers, judges, lawyers, birth parents, and/or foster families; however, they are the only party to
the case whose statutory responsibility is to investigate all relevant information about the case and advocate for
the best interest of the child ensuring all relevant information is brought before the judge.

Still, in Columbia County, CASA for Children is fortunate to have amazing organizational partners who are also
focused, in different ways than the CASA model, on improving the lives of those living in Columbia County,
including support for children in foster care. Some of these organizations are: Irontibe, Options, Columbia
County Community Health, Columbia County Childhood Trauma Informed Network and RiverCity Community
Outreach.

For this current fiscal year, less than one-quarter of our agency’s annual organizational budget funding comes
from the state. We carry out this critical service with the support of our philanthropic and community partners,
which funds three quarters of our budget. Thus, a grant from the City of Scappoose will help provide more
CASAs to children in foster care - one of the most vulnerable populations in the city’s community.

CASA for Children serves youth from birth to age 18 (and in some cases to age 21), who have been removed
from their families because of abuse or neglect and placed in foster care. All the children we serve, because of
their circumstances, are at or below the poverty line, and qualify for the Oregon Health Plan. All were removed
from their homes due to neglect, mental injury, physical abuse, sexual abuse, and/or threat of harm. The service
area for our program is Multnomah, Washington, and Columbia counties in Oregon; these counties are home to
about one-third of Oregon’s children in foster care. During FY21 and in our tri-county service area, we
advocated for 970 children in foster care. The children served by our program are approximately 66% White,
15% Black/African American, 9% Native American/Alaskan/or Hawaiian, 2% Asian, 3% multiracial, and 5%
other. In FY22, our goals include being able to serve a higher percentage of children of diverse race and
ethnicity, especially given that children of color in Oregon are overrepresented in the foster care system relative
to their population in the state.

40



Ver 2.1.2022.7 4

5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary?
Please explain.

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals?

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project?

The project is expected to be completed with the proposed funding.

The CASA model—a court-appointed volunteer advocating for the needs and best interests of a child in foster
care—is proven effective at significantly improving a child’s circumstances. Multiple sources of longitudinal
research report that a child with a CASA receives more of the services they need, has better outcomes in
school, and is more likely to find a safe, permanent home. Research shows youth that have the benefit of a
long-term relationship of trust with a CASA are likely to have better mental health, more education, and have
lower rates of poverty, early parenthood, and involvement with the justice system.

The impacts from our program promote the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals, including
promoting a “Caring Community” and a “Connected Community”. The CASA model promotes good health,
well-being, civic engagement, caring for each other, empowering youth, safety, and connection.

At CASA for Children, our group of approximately 500 volunteers donates around 115,000 hours annually, time
that would be valued at over $2.4 million. While the philanthropic return on investment and cost savings to the
State are substantial on a macro level, the impact on a single child's life can be even more substantial. A grant
from the City of Scappoose will leverage the cost savings and donated volunteer time to have an even larger
impact. Children in the foster system are at a critical inflection point in their lives—having a CASA to serve their
best interests can be the difference in how their life story unfolds.

Investing in CASA for Children is not only funding in the best interests of children in foster care in Scappoose, it
is also investing in the future of the community of Scappoose.

41



5
Ve

r. 
2.

1.
20

22
.7

PPr
oj

ec
t B

ud
ge

t

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 y

ou
r O

rg
an

iza
tio

n:

Ha
s t

he
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 S
ca

pp
oo

se
 C

EP
 g

ra
nt

 fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
 b

ef
or

e?

If 
yo

ur
 o

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
is 

su
bm

itt
in

g 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 p

le
as

e 
ra

nk
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 im

po
rt

an
ce

, 
w

ith
 1

 b
ei

ng
 th

e 
m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t. 
Ea

ch
 ra

nk
 ca

n 
on

ly
 

be
 u

se
d 

on
ce

.

   
   

If 
so

, w
ha

t y
ea

r a
nd

 h
ow

 m
uc

h?
Pr

oj
ec

t R
an

k:

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
ud

ge
t: 

in
clu

di
ng

 m
on

ey
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 so
ur

ce
s u

se
d 

fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
.

Li
ne

 It
em

CE
P 

Fu
nd

s
O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
Fu

nd
s

O
th

er
 F

un
ds

To
ta

l

To
ta

ls:

Ex
pl

ai
n 

so
ur

ce
s o

f O
th

er
 F

un
ds

Am
ou

nt
St

at
us

 (C
om

m
itt

ed
, A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Su

bm
itt

ed
, P

ot
en

tia
l S

ou
rc

e,
 e

tc
.)

$2
61

,4
50

Ye
s

20
21

,$
3,

39
4

Pe
rs

on
ne

lS
er

vi
ce

s
4,

65
0

54
,0

62
18

1,
34

4

Su
pp

lie
s

10
0

3,
12

5
3,

50
0

M
at

er
ia

ls
25

0
6,

00
0

O
th

er
3,

12
5

5,
29

4

5,
00

0
60

,3
12

19
6,

13
8

O
rg

an
iz

at
io

n
Fu

nd
s:

St
at

e
of

O
re

go
n

fu
nd

in
g

sp
ec

ifi
c

to
C

ol
um

bi
a

C
ou

nt
y

60
,3

12
C

om
m

itt
ed

O
th

er
Fu

nd
s:

A
m

ix
of

lo
ca

la
nd

na
tio

na
lf

un
di

ng
fro

m
co

m
pa

ni
es

an
d

fo
un

da
tio

ns
in

cl
ud

in
g

Jo
se

ph
E.

W
es

to
n

Pu
bl

ic
Fo

un
da

tio
n

of
O

C
F-

$4
8,

00
0,

Fo
rd

Fa
m

ily
Fd

n-
$1

1,
05

0,
Ja

m
es

&
Sh

irl
ey

R
ip

pe
y

Fo
un

da
tio

n

$5
0,

00
0,

R
os

e
E.

Tu
ck

er
C

ha
rit

ab
le

Tr
us

t-$
15

,0
00

,J
ua

n
Yo

un
g

Tr
us

t-W
es

t-$
5,

00
0,

C
la

rk
Fd

n-
$1

5,
00

0,

N
W

N
at

ur
al

-$
10

,0
00

,S
ch

am
p

Fa
m

ily
Fu

nd
of

O
C

F-
$1

1,
00

0,
m

is
c.

ev
en

tp
ro

ce
ed

s
to

co
ve

rb
al

an
ce

16
5,

13
8

Al
lc

om
m

itt
ed

am
ou

nt
s

Irw
in

Fo
un

da
tio

n-
$6

,0
00

,A
ck

le
y

Fo
un

da
tio

n-
$2

5,
00

0
31

,0
00

Ap
pl

ic
at

io
ns

su
bm

itt
ed

42



6
Ver. 2.1.2022.7

General Certification

By signing below, I certify that:

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 
body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body’s lawful process.

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

_________________________________________________
Authorized Signer Name (print)

_________________________________________________
Title

_________________________________________________
Signature

_________________________________________________
Date

______________________________________ _______________________
Signature

Betsy Stark Miller

5/2/2022

43



Fostering Success

City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 
Scappoose, Oregon 97056 

Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543. 7146 

Community Enhancement Program Application 

Applicant/Organization Name: I Riverside Community Outreach 

Project Title:-----_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_-_--�� 

Amount Requested� '�$_5_,o_o_o 
__________________________ __, 

Organization Type: 

� Nonprofit 501c3 

□ Other 
If other, describe: 

Organization Information 

Federal Tax ID No: 
183-3839513 

Brief description of organization: 
Riverside Community Outreach serves vulnerable children and supports families 
impacted by foster care in Columbia, Clatsop, and Tillamook counties. 

Title: Executive Director 

Email: abby@riversidecommunityoutreach.org 

Street Address: 
165 N. 11th St 
St Helens OR 97051 

Project Contact (If different than authorized signer) 

Name: 

Phone: I 

I Email: 
Street Address: 

Ver. 2. 1.2022.7 

Title: 

Mailing Address (if different): 
PO Box 245 
St Helens OR 97051 

Mailing Address (if different): 

u 
I 
I 

1 

44



Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 

question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.) 
In 2020, 192 youth spent at least one night in foster care in Columbia county due to founded cases of abuse or 
neglect. 

RCO was born out of a need to provide safety for vulnerable children, encouragement for foster parents, and 
support for biological families. Currently, RCO is running multiple programs and activities as well as partnering 
with other organizations in the community to serve this at-risk population. 

RCO provides care for vulnerable children at risk for entering the foster care system, supports foster families 
who are caring for children and works to empower birth families for successful reunification. RCO is here to help 
support vulnerable children by providing tangible needs, volunteering, and respite care. RCO also works to 
provide wrap-around services for families to help meet needs and to assist when children return home after 
spending time in foster care, and to provide resources for families to prevent removal. RCO provides these 
services through relationships, partnerships, and programs. 

RCO has become the link for families impacted by foster care in Columbia County to the help they need. 

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project. 
Fostering Success is an outreach program to empower and enrich the lives of youth impacted by foster care in 
Columbia, Clatsop, and Tillamook counties through recruitment, retention, reunification, prevention, and 
support. 

The American Academy of Pediatrics states, "Mental and behavioral health is the largest unmet health need for 
children and teens in foster care."(2021) According to the OHA Healthy Teens Survey (2020) in Columbia 
County depression and suicide among youth was higher than the state average. 

The National Foster Youth Institute (2021) reports that nationwide only 50% of youth who are raised in foster 
care will graduate from high school, and 40% of youth in foster care have educational difficulties. The National 
Survey of Children's Health (2016) found a greater likelihood of depression, and anxiety in youth in foster care. 

These are the youth targeted by Riverside Community Outreach's (RCO) Fostering Success program. There 
are currently 80 foster homes in Columbia County and 13 of those reside within the Scappoose boundary. As 
previously stated, 192 youth spent at least one night in foster care in Columbia County in 2020. 

RCO is not alone in working with this vulnerable population below are some of groups we partner with: 

Fostering Love kits: provides a bag of necessities and comfort items for children and teens entering foster care. 
This organization houses their supplies at the RCO office. 

Every Child: RCO is an affiliate organization for the statewide movement, Every Child. This movement mobilizes 
the community to meet the needs of foster families. 

Columbia County Trauma Informed Network and Resilient Clatsop County: RCO is a member of both of these 
groups who are working to bring trauma informed practices to the local community. 

North Coast Systems of Care Regional Executive Committee: The RCO Executive Director serves on this 
committee that works to remove barriers for people to access systems of care. 

OOHS: Connects foster families in need with RCO 

Iron Tribe: A recovery housing program in St Helens helps connect RCO resources with parents in the process 
of reunifying with their children. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 2 

45



3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project. 
The Fostering Success Program is outlined below: 

Recruitment: More foster families are needed in three different categories; general, culturally specific, and 
therapeutic. In order to reduce movement and trauma, strategic placements are necessary. RCO hosts a 
quarterly " Explore Fostering Coffee House. " This program connects seasoned foster parents with 
prospective foster parents to share about the struggles and joys of foster parenting. 

Retention: Foster families are a valuable resource for the OOHS Child Welfare department. These individuals 
care, protect, and advocate for youth. To meet the needs of youth in their home, respite care, training, and 
mentorship are needed. Foster Parent ' s Night Out is 4 hours of respite care once a month that welcomes 
youth to enjoy food, games, and activities while foster parents are given a break. Trauma Informed training 
provides skills and strategies for foster parents for successful parenting of youth from backgrounds of abuse 
and neglect. Foster Parent Mentorship pairs a seasoned foster parent with a new foster parent for 4 months. 
During this time the seasoned foster parent walks alongside the new foster parent as they navigate through the 
system for the first time. Foster parents who are rested, trained, and supported are able to provide long term 
care for youth, limiting the need for change and further trauma. 

Reunification: 57.8% of children in foster care were reunited with their biological families in 2019. In order for 
these reunifications to be successful long term, family stabilization is needed. RCO meets tangible needs for 
families starting over together. 

Prevention: In September of 2019, there were 50 children who were receiving services while still able to remain 
in their homes in Columbia County. These families were at risk of their children needing to be removed. RCO 
provides support and meets tangible needs for these families. 

Support: The foster care reimbursement rate is 60% of what is needed to raise a child. This is the amount given 
to foster parents to help cover the costs of the youth in their home. The USDA reports the cost of providing for 
teenagers is even more expensive. RCO meets tangible needs to fill the financial gap for foster families. This 
includes clothes, shoes, beds, baby gear, and providing scholarships for sports and camps. 

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents. 

--------------------------------------- --

Barriers that contribute to the inequities of the community we serve are poverty, lack of access to services, bias 
based on race, preconceived ideas of youth in foster care, judgment for parents with open Child Welfare cases, 
and distance from more populated areas. To address these barriers within our organization we serve those in 
the poverty level, make deliveries and accommodate for travel, have an equity training program in place for our 
staff to identify and combat bias, serve people with open Child Welfare cases, and have expanded our services 
to adjacent counties. To address the barriers outside of our organization we are actively looking for 
opportunities to serve the underserved and increase access for minorities, and working to bring services to rural 
communities in which we live. 

The community we serve often have a high ACEs score. ACEs (Adverse childhood experiences) are potentially 
traumatic events that occur in childhood. The CDC states, "ACEs are linked to chronic health problems, mental 
illness, and substance use problems in adolescence and adulthood. ACEs can also negatively impact 
education, job opportunities, and earning potential. However, ACEs can be prevented." 

The Fostering Success program reduces ACEs in youth impacted by foster care in the following (but not limited 
to) ways: 
*Helping to stabilize both families of origin and foster families by meeting tangible needs 

*Provide trauma informed training to foster parents to equip them and reduce the transitions of youth 
*Recruit strategic foster parents to provide safe and culturally appropriate homes for children and teens 

Ver 2. 1.2022.7 3 

46



5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 
Please explain. 
Providing care to families impacted by foster care is an on-going need. RCO is thankful for the support of the 
City of Scappoose and will continue each year during the grant process to invite the city to partner with us to 
meet the needs of the foster care community. 

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals? 
This project directly reflects a, "Caring Community." There are people in Scappoose opening their hearts and 
homes to youth who need a safe place to stay. There are also youth from Scappoose in homes across 
Columbia County. If foster parents feel seen and supported by their community, they are more likely to continue 
fostering for many years. This is a huge benefit to youth in the community. When safe and loving homes can't 
be found, children and youth need to be moved to other cities and/or counties. It is imperative to keep children 
and teens in their community. Not everyone is able to become a foster parent, but everyone can foster care for 
children and youth. 

In 2020 54.7% of youth who were in foster care were reunited with their families. It is important as we look at 
foster care through a holistic lense to make sure we are providing support during reunification. In an effort to 
reduce ACE's (Adverse Childhood Experiences) we need to limit transitions. This includes children and teens 
returning to foster care. Being a caring community means looking after children and teens during those 
vulnerable times of returning to home. 

Also, sometimes it is determined by Child Welfare that a family isn't experiencing abuse or neglect but poverty. 
For this reason RCO provides services to families with in-home safety plans and open assessments whose 
children have not been removed. Being a caring community also means helping families in crisis in the hopes to 
avoid disruption and relocation. Often many families just need a hand. Due to the relationship RCO has within 
the foster care community including OOHS Child Welfare and recovery programs such as Iron Tribe, we are 
able to provide support to children and teens in foster care, their foster parents, and their families of origin. 

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project? 
--------------------------------------- --

Riverside Community Outreach has spent five years building relationships within the foster care community in 
Columbia County and the past couple of years has begun building relationships in two additional counties, 
Clatsop, and Tillamook. The founder and Executive Director of RCO is adopted herself, was a foster parent for 
12 years, and has adopted 5 children. This firsthand experience gives her unique insight into meeting the needs 
of families impacted by foster care. 

RCO believes in the importance of serving vulnerable children and supporting families impacted by foster care 
in our community, and extends an offer for the city of Scappoose to partner with us. 

Ver 2. 1.2022.7 4 

47



48



General Certification 

By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 
body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

Abby Olson 
Authorized Signer Name (print) 

Executive Director 

Title 

Signature 

5/2/2022 

Date 

Ver. 2. 1.2022.7 
49



2021 Impact Report is attached at the end of this document.

Elks Club, Fostering Love Kits, ODHS Child Welfare,
Scappoose High School Leadership Club, 
Branches Church, Columbia River Foursquare Church

S C A P P OO S E  
LTugt:J--n 

City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 
Scappoose, Oregon 97056 

Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543. 7146 

Scappoose CEP Interim Project Report 

Applicant/Organization Name: I Riverside Community Outreach 

P • t y·tl Foster Parent Support (Acts of Kindness) roJec I e: 

Ph 5037403036 one: 

Email: abby@riversidecommunityoutreach.org 

Street Address: 
165 N. 11th St 
St Helens OR 97051 

Mif iii'i:Htl 1 2021 

Name of organizations that 
partner or collaborate on this 
project. 

I I 

Title: Executive Director 

Mailing Address (if different): 
PO Box 245 
St Helens OR 97051 

ilii::fitt·bii'iiM::H@M:I , 5'31'2022 1 I 

1 1 

I 56_0 _____ ____.I I 

1) Please describe how the CEP Grant has been used to date; attach photos, promotional 
information, brochures, project reports, or other supportive materials. 
RCO recieved a grant for $2,794 for Foster Parent Support. RCO partnered with the Elks Club, Branches 
Church, Columbia River Foursquare Church, OOHS Child Welfare, Iron Tribe, and Scappoose High School 
Leadership Club to provide a drive thru party with gifts for children and teens in foster care and care packages 
for Foster Parents. 

RCO was also able to provide meals for new foster parents, groceries for families in quarantine due to 
Covid19, cards of encouragement, and flowers. 

RCO also met tangible needs requests of families for children and teens in their care for example beds, clothes 
and shoes, diapers and wipes, and car seats. 

The only goal RCO had hoped to achieve but didn't was being able to provide house cleaning for foster families 
and a weekend raffle. There wasn't enough funding for these goals. RCO hopes to provide this in the future. 

Ver. 12.2021. 1 1 

50



2) How is this project benefitting the people of Scappoose? Please explain if more funding will be 
necessary to complete this project. Describe how this project is furthering and enhancing the values 
of Scappoose as expressed through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals. 
The more RCO is able to provide support to foster families, the better equipped they are to provide long term 
care for the youth in their home. When children and teens are in supportive foster homes there is less need for 
transition which means less trauma for kids. Providing for this vulnerable part of the community meets the " 
Caring Communtiy" piece of the vision statement for the city of Scappoose. 

This particular project is complete. However, caring for families impacted by foster care is an on-going need. 
RCO will continue to apply for grant funding yearly to give the city of Scappoose an opportunity to partner with 
us to meet this need. 

3) Is there anything else you would like us to know about the success or future of this project? 
RCO is very grateful for the financial support of the city of Scappoose. RCO believes it is imperative that the 
community continue to circle around families impacted by foster care and provide support to this part of the 
community. RCO has been able to provide resources, assistance, and encouragement to families thanks to 
your generousity. 

Ver. 12.2021. 1  2 

51



I nterim Project Budget Reporting 

�!!ii-i¥0i-ii� �Al-iiiii&Hii!i•fo::-, Do you anticipate seeking future CEP funding for this pro 

-'�lllf:1 ■ :.•t : l l l t  : •.l, .ai ltl:fl • • 

Line Item 

Holiday Party 

Meals and Groceries 

Tangible Needs 

, ,,..,.,, r, • 1 ,•  ,,.,•  , , • 1 -v•••••· .Y!J,a , ,�_,,,,, '"" 

Totals: 

CEP Funds Organization Other Funds Total 
Funds 

2000 585 2585 

794 0 794 

0 11831 11831 

2794 12416 15210 

RCO brought in approximately $30,000 in donated gifts for the holidays through our Amazon wish list, donations from the Elks club, and the Scappoose High School 
Leadership Club, and giving trees at 3 local churches. 

20 hours-organized and wrapped gifts, set up and tore down of event, and passed out items/gifts 

Ver. 12.2021. 1 3 

52



 

 

 

2021 RCO 
Impact Report 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

53



"Just want you to know that [youth in 

foster care] loved her bed and bedding.  

She was so pleased and happy and felt 

special.  Thank you and your team for 

helping to take care of our kiddos.  It 

feels so good to deliver these items."  -

ODHS Case Worker 

 

 

"Please know you, and your team make a 

huge difference in people's lives! Thanks 

for everything you all do for our families." 

ODHS Case Worker 

 

2021 RCO Impact Report 

From the Director: 
There are two things I love best about the work I do. The first is my front row seat 

to generosity. I am continually humbled and amazed at how selfless and giving 

people can be. I've seen people reach into their pockets and pull out money to buy 

gifts for children in foster care, give hours of their time to organize donated 

clothing, harness the power of the internet to find furniture for families in need, and make delicious meals for a front 

porch delivery when Covid-19 meant someone needed to quarantine. 

The second is seeing the expressions of the people we get to help. The relief on a mom's face when we show up on her 

front doorstep with groceries, the excitement in a child's eyes when they open a gift they requested for Christmas, the 

smile from a teen when they receive a gift card to buy new 

clothes. These moments are magical, and they make the 

challenging days worth it. 

What began as an idea in our living room has grown into a 
non-profit that serves families impacted by foster care in 
Columbia, Clatsop, and Tillamook counties. Riverside 
Community Outreach has become the link for families 
impacted by foster care in the NW section of the state of 
Oregon to the help they need. Through partnerships, volunteers, and programs, RCO is wrapping around families and 

children in new ways to provide long lasting care and 
sustainability.  

We can't do it without you! Your financial support is changing the 

lives of children and their families in our corner of Oregon. The 

magical moments I described above are made possible because of 

your investment into our community. We are so grateful for you 

and we hope you continue to partner with us in 2022. 

 

 

Abby Olson, Executive Director 

Every Child Oregon 

In 2012 a foster mom in Portland watched two little girls walk into an ODHS office with their belongings in a garbage 

bag. She asked the case worker what the next several hours would be like for the two girls. The picture painted for her 

was one of uncertainty and fear. Her heart was broken that day and she decided to do something to make the first few 

hours of foster care for children more bearable. This incredible woman created the first welcome box. Inside this box 

was a snack, a flashlight, activities to do while waiting, and a handwritten note with encouraging words. She then went 

on to rally the community to create more welcome boxes. The creation of welcome boxes has grown into a movement 

spreading across the state of Oregon.  

Every Child invites the community to engage with the foster care system. The heartbeat of Every Child is the core belief 

that everyone has something to bring to the table to support children and teens in foster care. The Every Child 

movement partners with local non-profits in different counties 

across Oregon. As the backbone organization, these non-profits 

provide  structure and fiscal sponsorship for the movement in 

each county. Riverside Community Outreach became the fiscal 

Learn more about the Every Child statewide 

movement at: https://everychildoregon.org/ 

54

https://everychildoregon.org/


"Thank you for the amazing coping skills tool box 

you put together for [child in foster care]! It is 

amazing and it is clear there was a lot of thought 

in putting it together. I so appreciate having RCO 

as a resource for needs like this for our kiddos 

and resource parents." -ODHS Case Worker 

 

 

sponsor in 2019 for Columbia County and expanded to include Clatsop and Tillamook counties in 2020. RCO strives to 

bring the Every Child initiatives to life in these three counties.  

Fostering Love Kits 

Imagine you are a young child going through the uncertainty and trauma of being removed from your home with only a 

few of your precious belongings stuffed in a garbage sack. Imagine the fear, anger, and sadness that would accompany 

you. The Fostering Love Kit offers hope and love to a youth entering the foster care system in the form of a duffel bag 

full of comfort and necessity items. These bags are meant to go with the youth on the next step(s) of their journey 

through the foster care system. Riverside Community Outreach partners with Fostering Love Kits to meet the needs of 

children and teens in foster care in Columbia 

County. In 2021, 75 Fostering Love Kits were 

made for children and teens in foster care in 

Columbia County. 

Community Support: 
Riverside Community Outreach is grateful for the individuals, service groups, churches, and businesses who have 
donated their time and resources to come alongside children and families in need. RCO could not do this important work 
without the support of the community. 
 

Volunteers: 65 mobilized to serve- volunteers sorted 

through clothes, shoes, and baby items at the community 

closet, delivered Foster Family Night In boxes to foster 

families,  passed out new shoes and goodies at our drive-

thru events, and wrapped hundreds of holiday gifts.  

Businesses: 13 provided financial support and donated 

goods and services 

Churches and Community Groups: 12 provided financial 

support and donated goods and services 

Individuals: Over 350 people purchased holiday gifts valuing more than $30,000 and 35 provided consistent financial 

support 

Donations: hundreds of pieces of clothing, baby gear, furniture and household items donated to the community closet 

 

Kick Off Summer 
In partnership with Starbucks, community service groups, and local businesses, RCO was able to provide a new pair of 
shoes for 256 youth in our corner of Oregon. The shoes were passed out during drive-thru events that celebrated foster 
families and showed our appreciation for them. Gift cards for foster parents, goody bags for kids, Papa Murphy's pizza, 
Super Joe's Espresso, and live music from Acoustic Flash Mob made for some great fun! 
Expansion into Clatsop and Tillamook counties 
 
An unexpected and exciting surprise in 2020 was the opportunity to serve as the backbone non-profit for the expansion 
of Every Child into two additional counties, doubling the number of families RCO supports. During 2021 RCO has enjoyed 
getting to know the families in these communities, meeting with businesses and community groups, and partnering with 
ODHS to launch Every Child initiatives. We are excited for what the future holds. 

  

Learn more about Fostering Love Kits at: 

https://fosteringlovekitscolumbiacountyoregon.wordpress.com/ 

55

https://fosteringlovekitscolumbiacountyoregon.wordpress.com/


""I have seen all of the little miracles you 

bring into people's lives from the kiddos in 

care, the resource families and even the child 

welfare workers. Thank you so much for all of 

the love that you have given our district." 

-Foster Parent 

My Neighbor 

This online system provides a way for families to request items they need. These include (but are not limited to)  

groceries, furniture for new placements, diapers, pull-ups, wipes, beds, bedding, clothing, shoes, laptops to conduct 

virtual visits, air purifiers, educational, and extracurricular activities. The needs have grown dramatically as families have 

been impacted by school closures, reduced hours, and loss of jobs. In 2019, RCO met 34 tangible needs for families; this 

jumped to 142 needs in 2020 and to 310 in 2021. 

 

Holiday Gifts 

Thanks to the incredible generosity of individuals , community service groups, churches, and businesses, RCO was able 
to deliver gifts to 325 youth. These included children and teens in foster care as well as those recently reunited with 
their families of origin. 
 
These gifts were selected specifically for each recipient. The gifts were passed out during a drive-thru event in each 
county where families received holiday wreathes, stuffed animals, warm blankets, a photo with Santa, and hot cocoa. It 
was a beautiful example of what can happen when the community rallies together to support vulnerable youth.  

 

Basket of Basics 
These laundry baskets are filled with household supplies for 

parents entering recovery programs on the path to reunifying 

with their children who have been in foster care. These baskets 

speak encouragement and hope into the lives of the people 

who receive them. Delivering baskets to our partners at Iron 

Tribe to help parents, who are working to reunify with their 

children, get back on their feet is one of our favorite things to 

do. Reunification and Recovery is possible! In 2021 RCO made 

and delivered 21 baskets to help families create a fresh start. 

 

New Building 

Riverside Community Outreach is excited to have found a long-term home and space located at 1465 Columbia Blvd 
(next to the Columbia County Food Bank's new location) to continue their care for the community's vulnerable children 
and support families impacted by foster care. This building is triple the size of the current location and is in need of 
renovations. The renovation of the building in downtown St Helens will allow RCO not only the opportunity to store 
items to meet tangible needs and a headquarters for their work in NW Oregon, but also provide a safe place for children 
and teens in the Columbia County community. There are children in foster care in our community whose parents were in 
foster care and their parents were in foster care before them. There are generational cycles that keep repeating. RCO 
has been supporting families in crisis for several years and will continue to support families as needed. But RCO has 
begun to ask the question, "What if, children and teens never needed to enter foster care in the first place? What if the 
community could rally around our youth and provide a safe place where they would be loved, encouraged, and 
supported? What if there were caring and safe adults ready to hang out with children and teens and empower them to 
finish school, follow their dreams, and reach for the best versions of themselves?" RCO believes remodeling this building 
into a safe place for children and teens where they can have opportunities to hang out in a healthy space, interact with 
caring adults, receive help with their homework, eat yummy food, climb a rock wall, learn how to play an instrument, 
record in a studio, participate in open mic nights and theater camps, read books, and just be themselves will 
revolutionize the foster care system in our community. Instead of being trapped in generational cycles, vulnerable youth 
from our community will begin to believe in themselves, make good choices, and change the trajectory of their future. 
We are excited to begin renovations on this building in 2022. 

 

56



Thank you all so much for what you do!!! It 

means so much to know there are 

people/organizations out there such as 

yourself to help us out and can make trying 

times a little bit easier." -Foster Parent 

Expansion into Clatsop and Tillamook counties 

An unexpected and exciting surprise in 2020 was the 
opportunity to serve as the backbone non-profit for the 
expansion of Every Child into two additional counties, 
doubling the number of families RCO supports. RCO has 
enjoyed getting to know the families in these communities 
and partnering with ODHS to launch Every Child initiatives. 
We are excited for what the future holds. 
 
 

  

    

  

 

   

Learn more about Riverside Community Outreach follow us on 
Facebook: @RiversideCommunitryOutreach or 
Instagram: @RiversideCommunityOutreach or 
at: www.riversidecommunityoutreach.org/ 

57

http://www.riversidecommunityoutreach.org/


9scAPPgry."g5
City of Scappoose . 33568 E Columbia Avenue

Scappoose, Oregon 97056
Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543.7146

Name:

$4,800

Community Enhancement Program Application

Project Title:

Amount Requested:

Organization Type:

ffi Nonprofit 501c3

E other
lf other, describe:

FederalTax lD No:

87-2277473

Run With Neil

Run With Neil Annual Run

Organization I nformation

Run With Neil provides resources to Scappoose youth for mental and physical
health opportunities serving Scappoose School District 1J (see map) covering an
area of 92,647 square acres.

Brief of

hoffmannm@comcast. net

s1751 SE Bth Sr
Scappoose, OR 97056

Street Address: Address

$fiatthew Hoffmann

Authorized Signer

503-369-4479 President

Name:

Phone: Title:

Email:

2190 Crestview Dr
West Linn, OR 97068

Street Address: Address

7

Yer.2.1.2422.7

Contact different than authorized

58



Please answer each qugstion that applies to your project to the best of your ability. lf a
question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this.

2

Run With Neil provides resources to imorove and suoDort our vouth's ohvsical and mental well-beino such as:
mentorshios between vouth oi various ages to create built in suooort throuqhout orade school. micjcile

and high school; financially supporting athletes through scholarships for sports registration fees and
needed to compete; sponsorship of athletes to participate in camps aimed at improving physical and

other to resources studentsto ininterestednonprofits provide

l* 2021 . Run With Neil oartnered with the Citv of Scaoooose to host the first iteration of a 5K/10K walk and run in
r with the Scaoooose 1O0-Year Centennial events. named Run 4 Neil. Desoite challenoinq weather
365 participants from the area participated. Providing a fun and engaging event in combination with a

Scappoose community ceiebration helps showcase the City and d raws participants from the region along with
families. Bringing people together is always good for a community, but in this case, further good is achieved

by dedicating any profits from the event to worthwhile projects by Run with Neil. We fully expect registrations to
500 in 2022, so with accompanying family and friends of participants, the number of people served

irectly or indirectly should exceed 1000. We are fortunate enough to have existing relationships within
Middle School and Scappoose High School, and this Spring WE successfully launched our mentor/

mentee partnerships in connection with Dam Worth It.

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem ygur project
mate of how mattem to this

Ver 2.1.2022.7

.U Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not
organization.)

project specific, but specific to your

59



Tlie iraicr lasks and timeline for Run With Neil 2022 are

1) Coordinated with the City of Scappoose to set a date (September 10) for a community celebration/event
{cione}.

2) Develop a sign-up website to attract participants (in process).

3) Formulate coordination and recruit event volunteers (TBA)

4) Secure permits/approval with the County and law enforcement to conduct the event (TBA)

Arrange for emergency services (TBA)

Secure refreshments and event memorabilia (TBA)

Arrange for event timing and start/finish setup (TBA)

Advertise the event in local and area publications (TBA)

Select the 1K, 5K and 10K courses (TBA)

10) Miscellaneous tasks and promotion (TBA)

6)

7)

un With Neil is committed to advancino oooortunities for students from different socioeconomic and historicallv
underrepresented eommunities. As the organization grows, we wiii participate in a number oi ouireach evenls as
part of our role as a member of the Scappoose and greater Columbia County communities. We recognize
students from historically underrepresented communities have less access to holistic healthcare services, such
as mental health support and advocacy, and we aim to help fill that gap through free mentorship programs and
assistance with athletic and sports camp fees. Flun With Neil believes organizatio{ls within our community must
strive to expand equity with a more inclusive approach that embraces ihe experience of all youths in our
community.

3Yer 2.1.2022.7

outline andtasksmajor if thisprojected timelinei
thediscuss benefit thisof andpublic project;

relatesit to

Please whatto theextent4l explain advancesproject equity,
residents.vulnerable

60



proposed funding will help ensure a successful 2022Run With Neil event and with good karma and
participation, will hopefully stimulate a major sponsor in succeeding years to the benefit of both the City and Run
With lrreir.

An annr;al ano fir()wtfto H{rn vvlln r\eil event oone as a coilaoorallon oelween ano amono Ine ulIV. nton iicnoot.
&i-rc L;cil]ffiuiltIv aiatuaci\./ i!ls ni,lelv wlit aii oui ,.7oai 5 rAOiti0 inTfasiru(_:nJre, ano itle i)carJrx)()se vrs!(II
Ji;.-. -,-,,..

verv mucn value Ine suDoon ano colaDoralron wttn Ine uttv Inat we nooe are aDte to conltnue as a te_qacv
memory of Neii Hoffmann. the insoiration for the 2021 Run With Neil events. Flun With Neil envisions a

wfiere young peopie nave trtproveo access ro sporl oppoftuntues rnar promore Inetr nolsilc weil-oetng.
II on ou VAIUEScore ano menlalrougn leantng neattn WE WOTKwrii ensureIOspreao ng awareness, every

iras IESOLJTCESIne an0 SKIIIS oeIO i^^-UVDIrneii' DVII.

ls there anything else you would like us to know about your project?

4ver 2 1 2Q22.7

5) Willthe project be completed with the
PIdase explain.

6) How do the outcomes ofyour project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals?

61



Q
"

(o

_{ 3 =
'

(.
o m -o t' = o :J

=o u a = o

o 9L li

o o : 0) 3 o o @

m o l U
) o s. o a

€ g) o_ (t -E N o a q) o 8r o

1l o =@

o o 3

o o
l\) (,

l o
o o

_s @ o

o
(, o o

(1 m ! tr J C
L

IA

o
o

_O
l o o O

-o O

-(
Jr o o

-(
, o

o
IO =

G
0.

 0
,

s'
 5

.
N o, f. o o o J o. v,

Ju o o
(n o o

_s o
(o -@ o o

-o
-(

tr o O

,(
Jl O

G
)

o g

! o ro o o o C
L ! o o 6 a @ C C
L

@ o rt ..t c a- S a S o o - :r o 3 o o o o o a. B ! o (t ar :r

T
'

e. o (1 @ C C
L

m o

=q o { :r o, o o) o, o. = o € 3 tr at

I o, o J o o fr o, J F
'

q) f. o J o rl o o a. 0) 1 (1 ql E t o o IA o r] m ! @ o J o J E o o o o o

s o { o g rg o o rt 11 o t, o C
L o C
L

E
T o o 0e o, ) F
'

o, !!. o )

o g m vt 3. J o o a. ! o o .} r) o a

_@ o o o

z o

o f Ir
, r N
) o N
)

!.J !

f 5 f o o =
. o c *. o l (t

f, o (o a 0) 5' = -n o o a

-(
, o o

-o o o

-{ E
-l ID

t4
 

lt,
C

d
G

' 
qJ

5c +
0 .s
s

rf ol ni
=

=
ci ii'
s

e+ S
R

oo R
g

i

m x ro E
.

J t o c - r) o 0 o o a J o 1I J C
L

6 3 o J 4

cr
<

 
!l 

=
o 

=
.! 

;'
tr

 r
=

o
E

 *
il'

E
cc

i-
e 

9.
 E

';
F

3;
3.

d 
s-

.s
38

E
'

A
J E
E

a'
-.

io E
 +

A
I 

a'
=

.
+

-+
o:

d.
F

 *
.a

r'l
6:

,
H

fr
d

--
r- -=

o
il€

+
*3

8
60

t^
i)-

9 ;6
e

J

-J (J
l

-o o\

62



General Certification

By signing below, I certify that:

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization.

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and
accurate.

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing

body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process.

l/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program
Application Guidelines; and

By signing this application stipulate that l/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and

l/welmy organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and

l/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this
project to City Council during Project Presentations.

Matthew Hoffmann

Authorized Signer Name (print)

Title

4-30-2422

Date

6
Yer.2.1.2022.7

63



I-*.*

it

.Y

''

i:l 
.i 

i

lr, 
' 

.i
- 

li.w
-'

iiI

[=!.,It.t

64



65



66



67



68



69



70



SCAPPOOSE L.TvgoM-
City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 

Scappoose, Oregon 97056 

Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543.7146 

Community Enhancement Program Application 

Applicant/Organization Name: Scappoose Community and Senior Center (SCSC) 

Project Title: Carpet and Flooring Replacement in Lobby of main building 

Amount Requested: IL$_5_,o_o_o _________________________ ___J 

Organization Type: 
IZi Nonprofit 501c3 

D Other 
If other, describe: 

Authorized Sj�_nE?r 
. 

' 

503-543-2047 Phone: 

Organization Information 

Federal Tax ID No: 
I 23-7151520 

Brief description of organization: 
Serving all community members, regardless of income, race, gender and social 
status with a special focus on seniors and community members with special 
needs. 

Title: President, Board of Directors 

Email: kaystuckwerings@gmail.com 

Street Address: 
33342 SW Meadow Drive 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

Email: 
Street Address: 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

Mailing Address (if different): 

Mailing Address (if different): 

RECEIVED 

APR 1 3 2022 

-, 
u 
I 

1 

71



Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 

question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. {This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.) 
- - - - --- - -- ---- - -- - -

1. We provide a place for people and organizations to meet and socialize. 
2. We deliver Meals on Wheels to needy individuals and families in the Scappoose area. 
3. Special interest and health-related classes are regularly offered. 
4. Counseling is offered for concerns about Medicare, Medicaid and supplementary health insurance. 
5. Our Bread Store is open 6 days a week and it provides free bread to the community with a special outreach 
to low income families. 
6. Our Thrift Store is open 6 days a week and provides low cost resale items to the community. Families under 
extreme hardships are provided items at no cost. 
7. BINGO two evening a week. 
8. We loan wheelchairs, crutches, walkers, etc. to all community members. There is no charge for this service. 
9. The Community Gardens Program is active in the Spring, Summer and Fall. It's open to everyone. 
10. Our Quilting Team meets regularly. They make beautiful quills and sell them to the community at bargain 
prices. 
11. Keep in mind that we have NO PAID Staff. All are volunteers! 

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project. 

--- - - - - - - - -- - - --- - --

Carpet and flooring in the lobby of the main building needs to be replaced and upgraded. It was never properly 
installed. How many people will be served by completing this project? Probably in the thousands. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 2 

72



5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 
Please explain. 
The project will be completed with this funding. Any funds remaining will be used to re-roof the Thrift Store on 
Dutch Canyon Road. 

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals? 
GOAL 6E ..... Support Senior Center 

7) Is_ there anything else you would like us to know about your project? 

Thank you for your support with this matter and in other tangible ways you have supported the Scappoose 
Community and Senior Center. 

Ver 2.1.2D22.7 4 

73



Project Budget 

Total Estimated Project Cost 
11 $5,000 

% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: 11 o 
Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? 

11 no 
If so, what year and how much? 11 

Line Item 

Carpet, pad, installation and removal of old pad and carpet 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

$5,000 

If your organization is submitting more than one 
application, please rank this projects importance, 
with 1 being the most important. Each rank can only 
be used once. 

I Project Rank:I 11 

0 0 

m m 

5 

74



General Certification 

By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 

accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 

body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 

Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 

other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 

next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 

project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

Authorized Signer Name (print) 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

6 

75



ScAPPnDSE 
L..T,tega� 

City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 

Scappoose, Oregon 97056 

Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543.7-1/fce/ 
Community Enhancement Program Application N.4y

0 
fie!) 

I I 
2 201.7 

Applicant/Organization Name: 
Scappoose Community Club 

I Farmers Market Sustainability I Project Title: �- ------;=====================================================.· 
Amount Requested: 

I $3,000 I 

Organization Type: 
D Nonprofit 501c3 

□ other 
If other, describe: 
501c4 

Authorized Signer 
. 

----

Organization Information 

Federal Tax ID No: 
I C l3 ·-07'1�"4 Co4 I 
Brief description of organization: 
Provides local produce and crafts to at the public 

Market Manager/ VP Community Club 
Title: 

Email: 
scappoosefm@gmail.com -

Street Address: 
2nd Street between Columbia Avenue and E. Olive St 

Street Address: 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

Malling Address (if different): 
33470 Chinook Plaza 182 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

Malling Address (If different): 

g 
g 
g 

1 

76



3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project. 
The farmers market will be promoted and advertised with the support of this grant, and serve the local 
community by setting up vendors along 2nd Street. This is a public city street. This event brings community 
together, and overtlows into other local activities at the city library, at Heritage Park, the Michael Curry Children's 
Fountain, skatepark, Historical Society and nearby local businesses. This is an annual event operating May thru 
September, under most weather conditions. 

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents. 
We are open to all regardless of ethnic, racial, sexual or gender identification. 

Ver 2.1.2022. 7 3 

77



5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 

Please explain. . - . ·-
If approved the funding will provide support during the latter part of the season by helping us recover our mIt1al 
outlay of expenses. 

6} How d o  the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 

through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals? 
We support a sustainable local economy, a caring community and connected community, and provide a space 
for exhibiting local pride through the commerce of local talent and business ownership. 

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project? 
The Scappoose Community Club Farmers Markel has been affected like others the past two to three years by 
the pandemic. Additionally, we are an institutional event entering our 2oth year serving the community. 
Typically, our advertising and promotions budget would include not only a multi-media awareness campaign, but 
also signage and replacing necessary operational materials such as canopies, tables, chairs, etc. Under normal 
circumstances we break even and have a small carryover amount for the following year. The pandemic has 
changed this. We requesting community help to help us return to our normal operating condition. To continue 
operating sustainably we are sharing a snapshot of our typical operating expenses, subject to modification and 
cost increases. As a nonprofit we are subject to the costs inflicted by the economic circumstances. 

Our advertising campaign costs may vary, but may include the following: 

Screen Ads $135/month for all 7 screens at the Scappoose 7 Cinema for a total of $675 for five months. 

Lamar Sign $400/month for billboard advertising, or for a four month campaign the typical nonprofit charge 
would be in the range of $1200+a one-lime setup fee of $500, for a total of $1700. 

Newspaper ads are by column inch for display ads. For instance, a 2 column x 5" ad typically runs aboul $80 at 
The South County Spotlight, whereas the same ad at The Chronicle runs close to $90 because it is included in 
their advertiser, other newspapers, and online. Note•· as a nonprofit we get a small discount. Total cost 
depends on number of ads we choose to run. This may range between $850 to $1000. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 4 

78



Project Budget 

Total Estimated Project Cost 11 $3,000 

% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: I [ 20% 

Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? I / Yes 

If so, what year and how much? 
11 

$3,000 I 

line Item CEP Funds 

Farmers Market Sustainabiltty for operating expenses during the 2022 Season $3,000 

Note: this will help offset costs of replacing signage, canopies, marketing & advertising as 1 

Totals: 11 $3,000 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

If your organization is submitting more than one 
application, please rank this projects importance, 
with 1 being the most important. Each rank can only 
be used once. 

Project Rank: I 

Organization 
Funds 
$4,500 

$4,500 

Other Funds Total 

$7,500 

$7,500 

5 

79



General Certification 

By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 
body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that lfwe/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

Authorized Signer Name (print) 

Title 

Signature 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

80



RECEIVED 
City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia AY.._enue 

SCAPPOOSE 
YF,wgo-n Scappoose, Oregofi1

� f671J71 
Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543. 7146 

Community Enhancement Program Application 

Applicant/Organization Name· 
I Scappoose FBLA 

P . t T'tl Trip to the FBLA National Leadership Conference in Chicago! roJec I e: L----;::============================='. 

Amount Requested:! L $_1_,o_o_o __________________________ _, 

Organization Information 
Organization Type: Federal Tax ID No: 
121 Nonprofit 501c3 193-0561782 
D Other Brief description of organization: 
If other, describe: 

FBLA helps high school students prepare for careers in business through 
academic competitions, leadership development, and educational programs. 

Authorized Signer 

. . 

. .. . . . 

. . . 

-Email: rposter@scappoose.k12.or.us 

Street Address: 
33700 SE High School Way 
Scappoose, OR 97056 

Street Address: 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

Title: Scappoose FBLA Faculty Adviser 

Mailing Address (if different): 

Mailing Address (if different): 

I 
I 

1 

81



Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 

question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.) 
FBLA provides high school students the opportunity to develop business leadership skills, it strengthens 
confidence in themselves and their work, helps develop their character and prepares them for useful citizenship, 
encourages them to practice efficient money management skills, promotes school loyalty, and helps facilitate 
the transition from school to work. 

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project. 
Our project is actually a trip to the FBLA National Leadership Conference in Chicago. Five Scappoose High 
School FBLA students will be representing our school and town at this conference in June 2022, and this grant 
will help fund a portion of this trip to Chicago. 

This project will help five students attend the conference, which has not been held in person since 2019 due to 
the pandemic. Over 230,000 FBLA members are active in the United States, with only 2% of those members 
qualifying to attend this conference in Chicago. So these five students are the best of the best! 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 2 

82



3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project. 
There are only three major portions of this trip: 

1. Lodging 
2. Conference Registration 
3. Airfare 

This grant will allow for a portion of this trip to be covered, while the remaining part of the trip will be covered 
through other fundraising efforts from the five students involved in the trip. 

The timeline is as follows: 

April 2022: Register for Conference 
May 2022: Book Lodging & Airfare 
May/June 2022: Fundraising to help pay for the trip to Chicago. 

The trip is from June 28 - July 3, 2022. 

The public benefit from this project is hard to quantify but can be explained. Many of our community members 
were either a part of FBLA when they were in high school or knew someone who was a part of it. Scappoose 
FBLA has been active for over 50 years straight! One of the longest running FBLA chapters in the State of 
Oregon. It has a rich tradition of having some of the best and brightest students who have walked through the 
doors of Scappoose High School. These students have gone on to start their own businesses in town, run for 
political offices, attended top Ivy League schools, and raised their families back in Scappoose, Oregon. These 
past FBLA members often donate back to the organization that they were a part of in high school. In 
conclusion, FBLA serves the community it is in and makes everyone proud when these students accomplish 
great things on the bright stage of FBLA Nationals. 

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents. 

This trip has five Scappoose FBLA members attending from all walks of life. Scappoose FBLA is all about 
equality, diversity and inclusion with its members. These students represent multiple different components of 
these areas and are always supportive of its community members who are passionate when it comes to this 
subject. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 3 

83



5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 
Please explain. 
The project will not be fully funded with this grant, however, this grant will go a long way in helping us succeed 
in fully providing this opportunity for its members. As I write this, we are currently planning on securing more 
funding to assist us, in addition to this grant, to help cover the costs of this trip. We could not do it without the 
support of multiple efforts, such as the possibility of receiving this grant. 

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals? 
I really believe this project falls under the "Lifelong Learning" goal written under the City Vision Statement. We 
at Scappoose High School are proud as students and educators to be a part of Scappoose, and want nothing 
more than to be a part of the process of making the town and its residents better for years to come. Our 
students are the future, and trips like this will allow them to visit places outside our Pacific Northwest and enrich 
their lives with experiences that they can bring back with them. These experiences will make them more 
rounded as students and deepen their critical thinking as humans. I am excited for my students to have this 
opportunity to visit the wonderful city of Chicago and learn all about its culture! As the lifelong learning goal 
states, our students will never stop thinking, learning and doing. And that's what we as Scappoose FBLA 
members promise to do. 

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project? 
Thank you in advance for taking the time to read through our application. We really appreciate it and hope that 
you will come to a decision to help support Scappoose FBLA in our trip to Chicago this summer. Take care! 

Ver 2.1.2022. 7 4 

84



Total Estimated Project Cost 
11 $7,500 

% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: 
1185% 

Project Budget 

Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? I J No 

If so, what year and how much? 
11 

N/A 

Line Item 

Cover the costs of the following areas (flights, lodging, transportation) 

Students required deposit (40% of total) 

Other fundraisers/donations 

Student Store profits (Scappoose High School) 

Explain sources of Other Funds 

1 lnRoads Scholarship/Donation 

GoFund me page 

Business Donations (Scappoose/St. Helen's) 

Flamingo Fundraiser 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

I CEP Funds 

$1,000 

$1,000 

If your organization is submitting more than one 
application, please rank this projects importance, 
with 1 being the most important. Each rank can only 
be used once. 

I Project Rank:I 11 

I Organization 
Funds 

$500 

$500 

Amount 

11$1,000 11 
$1,000 

$500 

$500 

I Other Funds I Total 

$1,000 

$3,000 $3,000 

$3,000 $3,000 

$500 

$6,000 $7,500 

Status (Committed, Application 

Submitted, Potential Source, etc.) 

I Application Submitted I 
Potential Source 

Potential Source 

Potential Source 

5 

85



General Certification 

By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 

accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 

body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 

Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 

other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 

next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 

project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

R an Poster 
Authorized Signer Name (print) 

Title 

4/18/2022 
Date 

Ver. 2.1.2022. 7 

86



-SCAPPOOSE • L.Tk.egtJ-a 

RECEIVED 
City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenu\4

Ay Scappoose, Oregon 97056., D 2 2022 
. Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543. 7146 

Community Enhancement Program Application 

Project Title: '-----'-'';::::=;����===:::=:=::���'-:1::=.===��'!:E:.::::=::::::::::::::=:============. 
Amount Requested:.___ ______________________ ___, 

Organization Information 
Organization Type: Federal Tax ID No: 
� Nonprofit 501c3 

I 9 3 - t> 9_ t; 17 5rJb I 
□ other 

Brief description of organization: 
If other, describe: 

' 

Sa fljl;JOOSL --f/-tdtln otv/ b{!e � 
f M- �?tA n) t)OcS f f /4,,/vr-e,_ 6fvr 

Street Address: 

5' :z If 3 2- 5. e, Fi ,& f Sf . 
Se,a.,/Jpoof;(_ 

Name: 

Phone: 

Email: 
Street Address: 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

. 

Mailing Address (If different): 

Title: 

Mailing Address (if different): 

1 

87



Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 
question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

P ease provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods services meet �he �eeds of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific but speci';c to you: 
or other to 

orgamzat1on.) 
' 1' 

771e, t.loc,� ac,,fiveJ/c, M>lt.cds, ;re f>eYvtS tJr1r/-/Y 6/z>r-e S / DC' ti,,( ()/r I I a c1s1 M cord,) pl1olvj rc,pli .S t;/ld_ J,v((./i,rtj ,,f f l6/JeP,v!;. tu/10 bOil.f 0t!?i(Jp06u__. 
o,f/cl 6ur,OU/J{')1r15 d:4rft1J. t'Jvr fiumfxr:s Jio,;,,t 

UJ /VI M,UJI ) ft; ,U"Vvt)-.5 Ct II ,:)__ I r I v I k....:, ('( .S I dt � 

fr, /ou I --fl,..v /1 i b {7; ,; C,_., /v0 U � f!< fl c)__ /-c Ct 1· f"--

tt bovr fl'<- -fuUfldiVJJ -furVlit:) 011(-L /o-ttt,I kt6h� 

tt 
ease prov1 e: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project a empts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this ro·ect. 

-riv... f1 is {b,Jcul $oti�j u)oulol. /;;u__ fo 
� p /)/) 6 0,,.. Cl G- 0 /VI n, l U VI , lj I.)} ;clL,_ HD/7 J CJ I ,;iJ--ij 
to m;-e,,f: f t'o 11. • $' c ti I' poo ,;e.. h Ct J /VJ Cl r1:) r c c,H tth 0,1 a. I 
o;;;orfu.//J iJ-,y� tt/1d.. 0trr11)1,f.n;f-JY-S huf Aus 
(7 D uni fy ln) /Jolt' d Cl/ t.A,1-tvt),-. 
fh lS fl nf} .t J IA,}/ II M,-rVC,. fN_ -t-w1'r--L. 
tOM mvl'I iJy /Jrl'r>J fumJI t-C� Iv 5-e}!"-R.,v- /Jr-
/JI_ ..t· a le c:,r1 c1 fu n a (J_.. H vi ry ftJ e-ru I) y a 11 c,L 

e.,D1t.f, // 1/0 h> f ,t> mu/G. t aJn a, a oiu-;e_.. a rJol 
6holUCC1{ye..- &Or _ lxa..l,l..nft-J iij , 

. _ farf ol fh,iS proJeJ would J'vldittU- add1hOfJt,/ 
/ 'jJJ-1� for fA-L- f�i-,sh>vie.,, Waifs /wuk • 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 
2 

88



. 
Jor as s and projected timeline; if this · • . 

space, discuss the public benefit of this . t· d . proJect is on private land or in a private 

as it relates to this project. 
proJec ' an describe coordination with other organizations 

t)Je., afl,,hcJpcdc_ /ale 6tllYlrne,v a1?cl earl_J_ fit/ 

ma r!Ldlfl!J a r1 cl ad ()(,,r f) 6 tn_y /tJr ; IYI f (c;flMf/,lall,1 /'\..._ 

; n A/ I> 1l&m ber , 

l).}fiile.,, -/f-,75 ().)'ii/ /Je.. on 1r/vak. re&)dt,vl-1c..J 

f rD/Je rf1e� bu.s)11£0Si'J or 1>,Jt1;1i udlonJ ot111 

be- fied 1n l).)1fA JAL, Of/t!rfa1i/lj fD be. 

vo+in:; hell/of drop 1) -{f I Or'tUiOrJ.5 . 

n ° w at extent the project advanc . d' . 

vulnerable Scappoose residents. 
es equity, 1vers1ty, and inclusion of the most 

ffil.f e,,v-&rlf Cttn /Jc.,. e1iJ011-ecl tY(;ti,ltSS of 

(Ctte I H)iJ/ on 1 ;01;-1; {'t<I !)mu poi11/ t>1 

,511elo f'i!O no1nic. 6fc, fu�. 

-{fu:.,, lrjlvf !'f)J ol I splo.-y_J C,(,L fl be, {) I -eAJccl 

h� tualllmg/ b1/i-it1tj I 
tM,)iJcJ,u1 c50<Yial 1wdlft 

() fie/ {UICI,, Ctble� +v a) I . 

1i>1- .c-«t+MA, i)X in UibtOY\.. fou, �1,,tS
J
cS 

/'yom ats10/ecL. Ii vinc1 -ft1c"il1f1t.S foot 111) 

· and -enjoyi'11 fk dfsplalf.5 , 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 3 

89



1 t e project be completed with the proposed funding or will future funding b ? 
Please explain. 

' e necessary . 

I)) & a 11h ?t/J ak, CfJ mf)ie)•'J'flS !J'Ll, p roj ecf 
w1f/,,_ f/te- pro po[,ec/ lunilJ� fhrs y-ec,Y- hld 

1/11 l,'oi pf!!k arid tu)!/ jJcJIJ ve✓ ,:;j}uf}J()f sh;/JS 
i ri .fuluM- , eor..f. 

ow O t e outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as ex ressed 
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals? 

P 

I)) t., Cl I'(.. en CO()� ttJ1n3 I() c.td (1 ... /lf te?'I <, fc) 

cy:plore. one! e:!)o') o+lter ;t.e/1j),borhoad.s) 

-/zl Jee,.. P' i olt- /n fft.e/i r u HJ , 6 fw ui C.tt f...(_, 

ODf' &mall /oivri f�r so()a/ifJ Ct 11 cl fJl.ffYtl c.J

;J-t.OfJLL, f'r"orn /J.e1:5·hhor1� t{)1YJ1V1Ut1i fJc.S . 

s t  ere anything else you would like us to know about your project? 

Wt. Oru exaikd abo,.).J f/17.'> /J,oJed C;rztl 
extec✓I th I:! II fliU.5 I c,.6fic... rt SjJ()/) ,5L .fro!Yv 

ovr tof/1 ()11 /,{ (II 0 . h1 Pufv I'£, y.e' Ci 15 /A,i.t. t/)Ol�ld 

/ i /le- lo f('t);Y/t)k.... Qf/d &Y.j!O/ld- /f.L(__,. tl>!Ylfe,h f101'\.. 

·f'Z! be,ts!lle.SSt'{ ;1r>hp1ohl- a11tl of/'.e,t/ I O('✓tL./ 
. /  

Or:) a r; i i.o fi?JfJ.:, 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 4 

90



Project Budget 

Total Estimated Project Cost 11 5'. '7S-0 
% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: J 1 13% 
Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? 11 

If so, what year and how much? J I 

•U..:J•iiJ.i:;b_••" 
line Item 

lfddi ll,i,Yl(L / 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

� 
J!. 

/VO 

CEP Funds 

{)_DO 

{)OO 

If your organization is submitting more than one 
application, please rank this projects importance, 
with 1 being the most important. Each rank can only 
be used once. 

[Jrou::i 

Organization 
Funds 

;?.S-0 

Other Funds Total 

5 

91



92



93



94



95



96



97



City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue
Scappoose, Oregon 97056

Staff Contact:  Susan Reeves 503.543.7146

1
Ver. 2.1.2022.7

Community Enhancement Program Application
Applicant/Organization Name: 

Project Title: 

Amount Requested: 

Organization Information
Federal Tax ID No: Organization Type:

If other, describe:
Brief description of organization:

Authorized Signer

Name:

Phone: Title:

Email:
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Project Contact (If different than authorized signer)

Name: 

Phone: Title: 

Email: 
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Nonprofit 501c3

Other

Scappoose Little League

Veterans Park Little League Restoration

$5,000

✔
93-0849752

Little League is a community baseball program operated by local volunteers, and
dedicated to providing any child with a fun and engaging youth sports
environment.

Scott Harrah

503-704-9624 President, Scappoose Little League

scott_harrah@yahoo.com

31951 SW Callahan Rd
Scappoose, OR 97056

98



Ver 2.1.2022.7 2

Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 
question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this.

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.)

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project.

We provide organized recreational baseball and softball for ages 4-12 in the greater Scappoose area. We are
part of the International Little League organization, and are based in Oregon's District 1. Other teams in our
district who we compete with are St Helens, Rainier, Clatskanie, North Portland, Wilshire Riverside, Parkside,
and Hollywood Rose City. Our spring season runs from the beginning of March through early June, with many
kids continuing to play through mid July to represent Scappoose for All Stars (which can lead to the Little
League World Series). Our fall season runs from late August through October.

We are 100% volunteer based and try to keep costs as low as possible to make the sport accessible to all
families in our community.

The project is a restoration of the 2 fields at Veterans Park. The fields have fallen behind over the last 5+ years
from normal wear and tear and need a considerable amount of work to bring them up near the quality of city
baseball and softball fields in other nearby communities. This has become very evident during the rain we've
have these last few weeks, where Veterans Park quickly becomes muddy and unsafe and thus unplayable. It's
not uncommon to see large swaths of it completely under two plus inches of water. We have had multiple
weeks of canceled games now. On these same days, other communities fields are playable. Even fields in
Scappoose, owned by the school district, are playable.

The project will restore soil levels and drainage on the fields so that the Scappoose youth have a reliable and
safe field to play. The state of the safety and playability of the fields is at a precipice where with much more
neglect they will without doubt decline sharply.

Scappoose Little League typically has about 400 kids enrolled every spring. These fields serve these kids as
well as all their families and opponent's families.

99



Ver 2.1.2022.7 3

3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project.

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents.

1. Bring in infield dirt/sand and field conditioner. The current infield is 3+ inches below the grass line, which is a)
a safety issue as balls take hard bounces off the lip and into players faces; and b) contributes to the severe
water pooling. $5,000 - July 2022

2. Pack the dirt with a large roller. - July 2022

3. Clay bricks for batters boxes and pitcher's mound. $1,000 - August 2022

4. Scorekeeper's boxes - a covered area behind the backstops for the scorekeepers to sit. $3,000 - June 2022

5. New equipment: base plugs, bases, pitching rubbers, field maintenance equipment. - $1,500

The core of Little League is the idea that organized recreational sports should not have barriers of accessibility
regarding income, ethnicity, or beliefs. This is largely accomplished by running it as a 100% volunteer
organization to keep costs as low as possible, with zero status requirements for registering.

100



Ver 2.1.2022.7 4

5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary?
Please explain.

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals?

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project?

It will be completed with the proposed funding (with extra costs coming from Scappoose Little League)

Local Pride - anyone who goes to parks in other communities can clearly see that our fields have fallen behind
standards. That said, our setting rivals everything out there. Once the fields themselves are up to par, the field
will be something we can all have a lot of pride in.

Lifelong learning and caring - Little League provides an environment for small groups of kids (teams) to bond
beyond the classroom, have each other's backs, root for each other to succeed, support each other when we
fail, and learn all of those competitive lessons in a safe and caring environment.

101



5
Ve

r. 
2.

1.
20

22
.7

PPr
oj

ec
t B

ud
ge

t

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 y

ou
r O

rg
an

iza
tio

n:

Ha
s t

he
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 S
ca

pp
oo

se
 C

EP
 g

ra
nt

 fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
 b

ef
or

e?

If 
yo

ur
 o

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
is 

su
bm

itt
in

g 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 p

le
as

e 
ra

nk
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 im

po
rt

an
ce

, 
w

ith
 1

 b
ei

ng
 th

e 
m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t. 
Ea

ch
 ra

nk
 ca

n 
on

ly
 

be
 u

se
d 

on
ce

.

   
   

If 
so

, w
ha

t y
ea

r a
nd

 h
ow

 m
uc

h?
Pr

oj
ec

t R
an

k:

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
ud

ge
t: 

in
clu

di
ng

 m
on

ey
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 so
ur

ce
s u

se
d 

fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
.

Li
ne

 It
em

CE
P 

Fu
nd

s
O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
Fu

nd
s

O
th

er
 F

un
ds

To
ta

l

To
ta

ls:

Ex
pl

ai
n 

so
ur

ce
s o

f O
th

er
 F

un
ds

Am
ou

nt
St

at
us

 (C
om

m
itt

ed
, A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Su

bm
itt

ed
, P

ot
en

tia
l S

ou
rc

e,
 e

tc
.)

$1
0,

00
0

$5
,0

00

N
o

In
fie

ld
di

rt/
sa

nd
/c

on
di

tio
ne

r
$4

00
0

$1
00

0
$5

00
0

C
la

y
fo

rb
at

te
rs

bo
xe

s
an

d
pi

tc
he

r's
m

ou
nd

su
pp

or
t

$1
00

0
$1

00
0

Sc
or

ek
ee

pe
r's

Bo
xe

s
$3

00
0

$3
00

0

N
ew

fie
ld

eq
ui

pm
en

t(
ba

se
pl

ug
s,

ba
se

s,
ru

bb
er

s,
m

ai
nt

en
an

ce
eq

ui
pm

en
t)

$1
50

0
$1

50
0

$1
0,

50
0

102



6
Ver. 2.1.2022.7

General Certification

By signing below, I certify that:

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 
body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body’s lawful process.

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

_________________________________________________
Authorized Signer Name (print)

_________________________________________________
Title

_________________________________________________
Signature

_________________________________________________
Date

_________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ _____
ignature

Scott Harrah

103



SCAPPOOSE L_T,tegc,-a 
City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 

Scappoose, Oregon 97056 
Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543.7146 

Community Enhancement Program Application 

A I. t/O • t· N Justin Engstrom/Scappoose School District pp 1can rgamza 10n ame: 

P . t T"tl Student Wellness and Suicide Prevention roJec I e: '----;:==========================================================� 

$5000 Amount Requested:�----------------------------� 

Organization Information 
Organization Type: Federal Tax ID No: 
� Nonprofit 501c3 193-0561782 
□ Other 

Brief description of organization: 
If other, describe: 

Scappoose School District 

Phone: 971-200-8000 Title: Director of Special Programs 

Street Address: Mailing Address (if different): 

33589 SE High School Way Scappoose, OR 97056 

Email: jengstrom@scappoose.k12.or.us 

Street Address: 

Title: District Care Coordinator 

Mailing Address (if different): 

33589 SE High School Way Scappoose, OR 97056 

Ver. 2.1.2022. 7 

I 

1 

104



Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 

question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.) 

Scappoose School District serves the community by providing K-12 education. In addition to education, the 
district has a part in supporting overall student wellness, including social emotional and mental health support. 
This additional support comes from a variety of staff but primarily includes counselors, social workers, or school 
based therapists. 

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project. 

This project is an ongoing attempt to break down the stigma around mental health and increase support 
strategies/break spaces that can be offered to students in an attempt to help them find or maintain wellness. 
Our student body has demonstrated an elevated level of mental distress due to the effects of the pandemic as 
well as the limited access to mental health services in the community. Since our county has such limited mental 
health resources available, our school district staff are trying to increase support in this area. Students are not 
able to access their learning while feeling high levels of stress or mental crises. Many students exhibit poor 
coping skills, no coping skills, or practice avoidance while feeling strong emotions at school. This often leads to 
conflicts with staff or students, unsafe behavior, or low attendance. Having a space to calm down and feel safe 
gives students an opportunity to self regulate, under supervision, and return to school ready to learn. Practicing 
self0regulation at school can increase attendance, positive coping skills, and life-long emotional balance. 

Addressing mental health concerns is also a factor contributing to efforts being made to reduce suicide attempts 
that have become more prevalent in recent years. In the 20/21 and 21/22 school years there have been at least 
14 suicide attempts, that we are aware of, by 7th-12th graders. One of these attempts resulted in the tragic loss 
of a student in October of 2020. In addition to this high number of suicide attempts over less than two full school 
years, that same age group has also had at least 11 additional students identifying suicidal thoughts. We would 
like to use grant funding to improve new wellness spaces for students to access support at school and to build 
resiliency. This project would serve the K-12 population at our Scappoose schools and if this funding helps just 
one student overcome thoughts of attempting suicide, it would be money well spent. Depending on the amount 
we may receive, funds could be used for developing these new break spaces/wellness rooms, as well as 
allowing staff to purchase additional supplies and resources. Examples of some things we would like to 
purchase: comfortable chairs, fidgets, drawing supplies, sound machines, lighting, table, decorations, books, 
self care posters, cards, group curriculum, workbooks, staff training opportunities (Trauma Informed Approach), 
etc. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 2 

105



3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project. 

The tasks we can take on with this project will be dependent on the amount of funding we are awarded and has 
the potential to have a significant impact on our district counseling department. The funding would be used 
ongoing to increase student resiliency, contribute to suicide prevention, staff training, and help our counseling 
department with a small spending budget that is currently very limited or non-existent depending on the school. 

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents. 

Improving the social emotional and mental health support at schools ensures that our most vulnerable students 
can be better supported at school when they may not have easy access to that support outside of school due to 
financial, transportation, language, or other barriers. Marginalized populations are impacted by mental health 
challenges and also face more barriers to accessing the care they need, making them more vulnerable to 
negative health outcomes later in life. This funding would be an attempt to keep those students from slipping 
through the cracks. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 3 

106



5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 
Please explain. 

The project and concerns we are addressing with this funding won't be something that can simply "be 
completed" and will be contributing to the development of our district counseling department that can impact 
students now and in the future. This project will be ongoing and there isn't necessarily a completion date but an 
ongoing effort to better our resources for those with the highest needs, for years to come. 

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals? 

The outcomes of this project would be improvements to the social emotional and mental heath of future 
generations in our community. The Caring Community section of the Scappoose Vision identifies peace and 
good health as essential to our town's growth and wellbeing and the mental health of our youth will have 
significant impacts on their longterm health as they grow to be productive citizens in our community. 

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project? 

The budget for our counseling department is currently very limited or non-existent based on individual schools. 
Any amount awarded would be greatly appreciated and would benefit our district as we face even more budget 
cuts for next school year. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 4 

107



Project Budget 

Total Estimated Project Cost 
11 $5000 

% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: 11 o 

Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? 
11 No 

If so, what year and how much? 11 

Line Item CEP Funds 

Group Curriculum and workbooks/materials 1000 

Wellness space improvement 1000 

Supplies for students to access (Fidgets, art supplies, sensory activities, etc) 1000 

Staff training opportunities 2000 

5000 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

If your organization is submitting more than one 
application, please rank this projects importance, 
with 1 being the most important. Each rank can only 
be used once. 

IJrou:::i 

I Organization I Other Funds I Total 
Funds 

1000 

1000 

1000 

2000 

5000 

5 

108



General Certification 

By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 
body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

t 
Title 

Date 

5)2/22 
I 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 
109



City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue
Scappoose, Oregon 97056

Staff Contact:  Susan Reeves 503.543.7146

1
Ver. 2.1.2022.7

Community Enhancement Program Application
Applicant/Organization Name: 

Project Title: 

Amount Requested: 

Organization Information
Federal Tax ID No: Organization Type:

If other, describe:
Brief description of organization:

Authorized Signer

Name:

Phone: Title:

Email:
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Project Contact (If different than authorized signer)

Name: 

Phone: Title: 

Email: 
Street Address: Mailing Address (if different):

Nonprofit 501c3

Other

Julia Edge, ELA Instructor, Scappoose High School

Oregon Shakespeare Festival

$5,000

✔
93-0561782

Scappoose School District

Julia Edge

971-570-2543 ELA Teacher

jedge@scappoose.k12.or.us

33700 SE High School Way
Scappoose, OR 97056

(same)

110



Ver 2.1.2022.7 2

Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 
question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this.

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.)

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project.

The Scappoose High School English Languarge Arts Program  is raising money to send students to the Oregon 
Shakespeare Festival in the spring of the 2022-23 school year. Without your assistance, Scappoose families will 
pay upwards of $250-$300 each. Many families in our community will not be able to participate in thes valuable 
experience due to economic constraints. 

Since our students rely on the generosity of organizations like yours, we write to ask you to consider a donation 
of $5,000 to our cause. Wehave averaged the cost of send 30 students the Oregon Shakespeare Festival to 
come to $9,000. Your donation will allow many students living on low-income an experience of a life time. 

111



Ver 2.1.2022.7 3

3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project.

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents.

This trip takes place in the spring but reserving tickets to the Oregon Shakespeare Festival, hotel rooms, and 
transportation begins much earlier. 

Oregon Shakespeare Festival tickets = $45/show per student = $135/student x30 students = $4,050
Ashland Comfort Inn in Ashland (two students per room) = $120 x2 nights x15 rooms =$3,600
School Bus transportation and gas vary = approximately $1,300

This is a trip of a life time that is open to ALL students. Funding from the Community Enhancement Program will 
allow more diverse students to particiapate. 

Theatre is a great way to learn. Theatre teaches us about people, places, and ideas to which we would not 
otherwise be exposed. In a global sense, theatre helps us understand people from cultures other than our own. 
By attending the renowned Oregon Shakespeare Festival, students would be exposed to such benefits as new 
knowledge, a deeper sense of tolerance and historical empathy, and an opportunity for critical thinking and 
future cultural consumption. 

112



Ver 2.1.2022.7 4

5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 
Please explain.

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals?

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project?

The Oregon Shakespeare Festival is an annual trip. Every year a new group of students will get to experience 
the amazing opportunity. 

A trip to the Oregon Shakespeare Festival opens students minds to a diverse world of ideas and helps them to 
see different perspectives in a non-academic way that students are hungry for. This is something that has been 
missing in their world in the recent times. These are foundational perspectives that help students to connect to 
universal themes and essential to growth. 

113



5
Ve

r. 
2.

1.
20

22
.7

PPr
oj

ec
t B

ud
ge

t

To
ta

l E
st

im
at

ed
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t

%
 o

f T
ot

al
 P

ro
je

ct
 C

os
t p

ro
vi

de
d 

by
 y

ou
r O

rg
an

iza
tio

n:

Ha
s t

he
 O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
re

ce
iv

ed
 a

 S
ca

pp
oo

se
 C

EP
 g

ra
nt

 fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
 b

ef
or

e?

If 
yo

ur
 o

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
is 

su
bm

itt
in

g 
m

or
e 

th
an

 o
ne

 
ap

pl
ic

at
io

n,
 p

le
as

e 
ra

nk
 th

is 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 im

po
rt

an
ce

, 
w

ith
 1

 b
ei

ng
 th

e 
m

os
t i

m
po

rt
an

t. 
Ea

ch
 ra

nk
 ca

n 
on

ly
 

be
 u

se
d 

on
ce

.

   
   

If 
so

, w
ha

t y
ea

r a
nd

 h
ow

 m
uc

h?
Pr

oj
ec

t R
an

k:

Pr
op

os
ed

 P
ro

je
ct

 B
ud

ge
t: 

in
clu

di
ng

 m
on

ey
 fr

om
 o

th
er

 so
ur

ce
s u

se
d 

fo
r t

hi
s p

ro
je

ct
.

Li
ne

 It
em

CE
P 

Fu
nd

s
O

rg
an

iza
tio

n 
Fu

nd
s

O
th

er
 F

un
ds

To
ta

l

To
ta

ls:

Ex
pl

ai
n 

so
ur

ce
s o

f O
th

er
 F

un
ds

Am
ou

nt
St

at
us

 (C
om

m
itt

ed
, A

pp
lic

at
io

n 
Su

bm
itt

ed
, P

ot
en

tia
l S

ou
rc

e,
 e

tc
.)

$9
,0

00

0

N
o

O
re

go
n 

Sh
ak

es
pe

ar
e 

Fe
st

iv
al

 ti
ck

et
s 

(s
ee

 c
os

t b
re

ak
do

w
n 

in
 #

3)
4,

05
0.

00
4,

05
0.

00

H
ot

el
 (s

ee
 c

os
t b

re
ak

do
w

n 
in

 #
3)

 
95

0
2,

65
0.

00
3,

60
0.

00

Tr
an

sp
or

ta
tio

n 
(b

us
 &

 g
as

)
13

00
.0

0
1,

30
0.

00

5,
00

0.
00

3,
95

0.
00

8,
95

0.
00

St
ud

en
ts

 to
 fu

nd
ra

is
e 

fo
r a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
os

t
3,

95
0.

00
To

 b
e 

de
te

rm
in

ed
 

114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



5CAPPCLDSE 
L.T,tego-a 

City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 
Scappoose, Oregon 97056 

Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543.7flECEIVED 

Community Enhancement Program Application APR O 1 i'Ut 

Applicant/Organization Name: YJ 

Project Title: L...::,,0..!..!....!�����;=:;F::±:���=�����=:=:=:=:=:=:=:::; 

Organization Information 
Organization Type: Federal Tax ID No: 
D Nonprofit 501c3 

� Other 
Brief description of organization: 

If other, describe: 
6� M idld.tL> 3t1ex:5/ 6� 

Tu�) 

Street Address: Mailing Address (if different): 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

I 

1 

122



Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 

question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods, services, or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.) _ _ __ 

The Scappoose middle School Feather Bazaar and Raffle 1s our annual 

holiday event that gives out students the opportunity to purchase gifts 

for their families using "feathers" that they earn for positive behavior 

as currency. The feathers are earning by being responsible, respectful, 

safe and kind throughout their school day. 

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of ho_w many persons will be served by this project. 

The Feather Bazaar and raffle and serves our approximately 300 

students and their families yearly by making holiday gifts available for 

student to "purchase" through no cost to them that would otherwise 

not be provided to our students families, our community members the 

benefit conservatively could impact double or triple the number of 

students we serve. Approximately 35% of our students qualified for 

free lunch prior to the pandemic. With the recent cost of living 

increases facing our community due to inflation our hope is to bring 

continued joy to our students holiday season. 

This project is our biggest feather reward event of the year and would 

not be possible without funding from the Community Enhancement 

project. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 2 

123



3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project. 

Shopping for Bazaar items: completed by 11/29/2022 

Set up: Completed by: 12/5/2022 

Bazaar takes place: 12/5 -12/8 

Take down, clean up and inventory: 12/8/2022 

These tasks are completed by our dedicated group of volunteers and 1 

myself. 

�-Ii!.� 
This Project advances equity among our students by providing all of 

them the ability to give gifts to their families that may not otherwise be 

available during the holiday season, especially where there is the most 

need, and is provided to all of our students. Every student is included 

and no one is turned away. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 3 

124



5) Will the project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 

Please explain. 

While we do receive some small donations, this event would not be 
possible without this Community Enhancement Project Grant. 

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 

through the Scappoose Visio_n Statement and Council Goals? 

We hope to establish in our children a spirit of pride in their community• 

and a spirit of giving led by our example of providing them the ability to 

enhance the lives of their families through holiday gift giving. 

The memory of this time here at SMS and the example shown to them 

will be a positive example of doing for others. 

7 Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project? 

We were unable to have our Bazaar in 2020 due to the pandemic and 

school closure. We had funds to carry over for our 2021 Bazaar, which 

is why I asked for a smaller grant last year, but those funds are 

completely depleted now, which makes securing this grant so 

important. 

2021 was my first year at the helm of the Feather bazaar and raffle, 

and I was overwhelmed by the hard work and dedication of our 

volunteers, the enthusiasm of our students and how much the 

displayed how thankful they were for this opportunity. We have great 

students here at SMS! I could not walk down our halls without students 

stopping me to say "thank you". 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 4 

125



Project Budget 

Total Estimated Project Cost 

% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: 

Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? es 
If so, what year and how much? 3/3{)(). Ou 

Line Item CEP Funds 

u !oCCL/ bU.6IYJ-e5S owmv- lkSU.A-' 1 tg- owna:k.s 
Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

If your organization is submitting more than one 
application, please rank this projects importance, 
with 1 being the most important. Each rank can only 
be used once. 

[Jrou:i 

Organization 
Funds 

Other Funds 

'J{} 

Fov 61ff- Card. s. 

Total 

5 

126



General Certification 

By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 

body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

Authorized Signer Name ( 

� 

Ver. 2.1.2022. 7 
127



Applicant/Organization Name:[;:�; _ c. '/'<cc�- /. f !UU"J·u;J '/'�£� 

Project Title: [f�o,J 'I K1'c/2 tutt:'&1d /:>er/ f?trJ rco,,,,, i � '()sp,cf 
Amount Requested: L.i..a...,Q'---"'Q._�_o _____________________ __, 

Organization Type: 

12( Nonprofit 501c3 

D Other 
If other, describe: 

Federal Tax ID No: 

· description of organization: 

Street Address: Mailing Address (if different): 
.Soc.; l:' � of SI 1v1 cud ck c:-� .-, 
�'/We�flJf kutC1 tul!J!c>ofe. io,r/e,a 
5/GSf; fw tJCI} /JtJil�cl 41 
�;�/tf'W.fr1 

t>K 9705-6 

Street Address: Mailing Address (if different): 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

128



· Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 
question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

-,� -=t='ou .l Ll \�� ?ro')r-w.-�?'l '-t�e Cv.-f G>(r1'ti;>c<,{ CO>'\. D/1:ra.·k..s 
7V\._ eou�ra'-'tor\. w,i-k -+k $c�pfboJR S,ckJu/ D,,rfric.,-{ 
c....Jd,c �Sc I:> �, ld /5�,eu{ �Dd. t 0 ScLw7½ Ovt e,ueer/:.ewd_> 

\k 1 � �< o .{ c L.-\-- hu, � 6� CV\ 1 VL o pc.;y A. --t. � o � '-\Dr L/ '-( 't'Cc.v .5. � d. 

u..x:.,� O�v (,,L -'e d , (A c... m ocl"t ,_fr c cf -t<-d h r Vi,'\. vu, tli. + I«_ e O&> ,d /7 
\ C- lG-\..---\-c,..d S-4 �--l- c:b w l'l � ---, c..(__ ?e" � 0 /1 � 0 � IA.er 'r y\_, �ke_ 

"::>CLt-f p c)O se... s ck" c) I D' � {-( I (__ +, 
So��� ?0s.i�'ive -+0-<Yl1 !; C/4.,ne:. ou( 0.f 'f?i.c cl<u/f.e-w� 
o-\ +lu.- Co u, d 11 S. L..{ do c.,u l'7 l tA y c (GL � � OJ-1. <{c) '4--tc.t_ FDo � '-{ �, 

·?, t> �l<=<VV\ 1 W \�ik f� Su-P fb1+ o--r �-{{ C\-t � sckoo I 
X)Lt�, (d�vt7� t,ui:"" i .. .ueve c._[o lc'--\.o l'-'l.\)olve <:;;:on-r.c- f-h c; lc S:c..4o, 
l"vk\:\,O"l¼. ( ¼t-<01 SoCA /4y �t-rAcf�f.s ltA t-l<-e .Jls•t;b'-<{·,ovt 
D '-\- u� u--e.� /L { '1. 6:-t 7s o.£ --\-o O C) � {Au ve C' Ot,c\:i UV.. ed u..;; ( 

'-\iA, \ � -\ut rrtu.:l- c C. Lt-� r � { LL( a\? -pr ,1 lf'. 'r >-11 C< (e l( 3 S' -l./ Q 
� '::> s c0{ �ee � �v"d Ci O ho M-e L,V; Ui �'h-tJett {-j wko H.c.<. 1(. 

bet'11. ,cl-c;M."1-rf>cd of J1�1r1y 'f-/4,c 11-«d. ·-:/ri ctdd,�loula rflds
V4:: itOLV �u c. u..>ltt c.<.. t l s- µ_u.ow vr Q J Q.. � o d Q__ lox ( o { ¼.-e. 
t-:\-, � h <;; c ltoo { '{- l(.CA .. '\- � f lcKu .5.: lA., s. lt S c ko o / <; '+<A. d·ei.:.(J '-tu ? l cJ-u 

� 

,IW'/ I-� /'ffl 
2.JJsotloc<i 

;/4·4 /41/{ 
I 

od � ./.u«i 7 vt CDv1:-+1devt�.- 1lve i} • '),h 5ckoo \ /,,tu.. C c�ll..(.)c..'1> /A.C-(__ 1 
SOI-� �.{{f <..4.(4

4;1 
'7c·-f/,,7. �f b4<;,-f drf•/r1hti·k-dc.uAd ftru ..('�cu,..rfo U:: 

qr,,erl41 /u/f)t:d wi/.h fhw (Jtoh/e,ru, ll<.c.. Curra---( llJt.tU-t.b -e(' 

129



3) Briefly outline major tasks and projected time line; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project. _ . ·. . . . • · . : 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 3 

130



�) WiJI. ,�e project be completed with the prop�sed fundi,ig, .o� will future funding be necessary? . . : 
Please explain. · . · .. · .. ' ·: . '. - · · ... ·, . ··' . · ' · · ·. ·.,·: 

� - - •_ - -
' I ' I • 

-

vl)e sec ¼'\ � a� Cu1 op fo1¼ni 0 ,Jo 141;: -� 
d'({ levvt1c.C- � s�J�{_) Wl (� --+lt.l s Cnvt.(f-eet� I 
\ l..e<;,e "-)Du.{ll\.. Q_\'" e OU-'f �,twe_ u.,vtd L-U e o � � 

4e{ Ol'le 5hot- 4-{ edCACC-<_{�'flc:-i +?t-eu-r, C-erl'bcul; 
�OMA.e./fu'>1.r qs Qtfic Cl.S MCiU1uc; c;;rw,-J lo r?w/- 1 

45hou(di I b� a /(0u;cd Yo be a br1/'tff lo /k; 
r/ ff tJr/411 rfc; �n cf au r £ lvr <", 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 4 

131



Project Budget 

Total Estimated Project Cost 'CW--
% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: 

Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? 11 U't!'� 
If so, what year and how much? I 12011..,2_,'/f!:1DIY-2 7s:ru 2D/ o/--.27"� 

Line Item CEP Funds I Organization 
Funds 

3000°6 111 

� 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

Other Funds Total 

7ru2� ! 

- _J 

5 

132



By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 
body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 
133



Internal Revenue Service 
P.O. Box 2508 
Cincinnati, OH 45201 

bate: OCT 2 6 2007 

SOCIE1Y OF ST VINCENT DE PAUL PORTLAND. 
COUNCIL 
5120 SE MILWAUKIE AVE 
PORTLAND, OR 97202 

Dear.Sir or Madam: 

· oepartment of the ,reasury 

· Person to C_ontact: 
Roger Meyer 

. ID #_31-07707 
Toll Free Telephone Number: 

877-829-5500 
Employer Identification Number. 

93-0456525 

This is in respcillse to your.request of October 19,.2007, regarding your tax-exempt.sta_tus. 

Our rer.ords Indicate that a determination letter was issued In August 1937 that recognized you as exempt from 
Federal Income tax, and reflect that you am currenUy exempt under section 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue 
Code. 

Our records also Indicate you are not a·ptivate foundatipn within the mooning of section 509(a) of U1e Code. 
because you are desaibed In section 509(a)(1) and 170(b)(1)(A)(I). 

Donors may deduct contributions to you as provided In section no·or Iha Code. Bequests, legacies, devises, 
transfers, or gills to you or for your use are deductible for federal estate and gill tax purposes If they meet the 
applicable provisions of secttons 2055, 2106, and 2522 of the Code. · 

If YQU have any questions, please .call us-at the telephone number shown In the heading of this l�ter. 

1�Incarely, 

UA'-t_ /j� 
Cin(/�estoott 
Man�ger, Exempt Organizations 
Determinations 

134



City of Scappoose • 33568 E Columbia Avenue 

Scappoose, Oregon 97056 

Staff Contact: Susan Reeves 503.543.7146 

Community Enhancement Program Application 

Applicant/Organization Name: United Way of Columbia County 

P . t T"tl Dolly Partons Imagination Library- Columbia County 
roJec I e: '-----;============================================================::::::, 

Amount Requested: ._$_1_·2_5_0 ____________________________ __, 

Organization Type: 
� Nonprofit 501c3 

Oother 
If other, describe: 

Organization Information 

Federal Tax ID No: 
193-603834 I 
Brief description of organization: 
United Way of Columbia County fights for the health, education, and fincail 
stability for all Columbia County residence through non-profit support and direct 
service projects. 

Title: Executive Director 

E •1 clairec@unitedwayofcolumbiacounty.com ma1: 
Street Address: 
305 W 3rd Street 
Rainier, OR 97048 

Name: 

Phone: 

Email: 
Street Address: 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

Title: 

Mailing Address (if different): 
PO Box 538 
Rainier, OR 97048 

Mailing Address (if different): 

1 

135



Please answer each question that applies to your project to the best of your ability. If a 

question or portion of a question is not applicable to your project, please indicate this. 

1) Please provide an explanation of what your organization provides as goods , services , or other to 
meet the needs of Scappoose residents. (This is not project specific, but specific to your 
organization.) 
United Way of Columbia County (UWCC) focuses on non-profit, business, and governmental partnerships to fill 
service gaps throughout Columbia County. In 2021, the Scappoose specific projects that we led include the 
Dolly Parton Imagination Library Program, summer meal bags for Scappoose School District Families, and 
funding for food and shelter programs. UWCC, with support from local donors, remains flexible to meet various 
community needs as they arise, based on data and anecdotal stories from community members. 

2) Please provide: a brief description of your project; a description of the problem your project 
attempts to solve; and an estimate of how many persons will be served by this project. 
Dolly Partons Imagination Library (DPIL) began serving Columbia County youth in 2018, with funding and 
program support from UWCC. This program mails free, highquality, age-appropriate books to children ages 
0-5th birthday each month. Children enrolled in the program improve their early literacy and kindergarden 
readiness. Currently, 428 Scappoose children are enrolled in the program. Every young person (ages 0-5th 
borthday) in Columbia County is elligable to enroll online or at their local library. In addition, families enrolled in 
the free program recieve monthly emails with early learning resources and oppurtunities. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 2 

136



ne you me maJor tas s an projected timeline; if this project is on private land or in a private 
space, discuss the public benefit of this project; and describe coordination with other organizations 
as it relates to this project. 
Through community volunteers, the DPIL program: 
-Enrolls local children to recieve books 
-Maintains monthly mailing lists 
-Distributes books to local community partners 
-Shares other educational oppurtunities with families through a monthly email 

This program is ongoing and relys on local contibutions, volunteers, and community partners to maintain 
program. Partner agencies, in the DPIL Advisory Committee include the Sappoose Public Library, Community 
Action Team, and Scappoose OHSU Family Medicine. 

4) Please explain to what extent the project advances equity, diversity, and inclusion of the most 
vulnerable Scappoose residents. 
Thie program inhances the early learning for all Scappoose children by building their home libraries of upto 60 
books before entering kindergarden! In addition, the books selected by DPIL to be distributed include Spanish 
language books as well as books featuring children with a variety of ethnic backgrounds. You can find a 
complete list of books offered at www.imaginationlibrary.com. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 3 

137



1 t e project be completed with the proposed funding, or will future funding be necessary? 
Please explain. 
This is an ongoing project with an ongoing need for funding. $1,250 will sponsor 500 children (cost of books 
and mailings) in Scappoose. In future years, we will be working with state agencies and elected officails to 
sponsor full coverage to this program throughout Oregon. 

6) How do the outcomes of your project further and enhance the values of Scappoose as expressed 
through the Scappoose Vision Statement and Council Goals? 
Lifelong Learning: Scappoose children will be ready to enter Kindergarten with an excitement to learn and 
knowledge of how to handle books. Thie program has been shown, throughout the nation, to improve learners 
Kindergarden Readiness Scores, 3rd Grade Reading Scores, and High School Graduation Rates! This 
program will continue to get books into all Scappoose childrens hands. 

7) Is there anything else you would like us to know about your project? 
Thank you for your commintment to Scappoose community members. 

Ver 2.1.2022.7 4 

138



Project Budget 

Total Estimated Project Cost 11 $41,850 

% of Total Project Cost provided by your Organization: 
1156% 

Has the Organization received a Scappoose CEP grant for this project before? 11 no 
If so, what year and how much? / I 

Line Item I CEP Funds 

Program Administration 

Book Cost and Mailing (billed from imaginationlibrary.com) $1,250 

-

$1,250 

Individual Donors 

Fibre Federal Credit Union 

lnRoads Credit Union 

Hudson Garbage : 
City of St Helens 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

If your organization is submitting more than one 
application, please rank this projects importance, 
with 1 being the most important. Each rank can only 
be used once. 

[Jro1.c 

I Organization 
Funds 

11 $2,850 

11 $19,500 

$22,350 

I 11 $4,250 -
I 11 $2,500 

11�0 

I ffif 0 $500 

I Other Funds 

$18,250 

$18,250 

I I I Potential Source 

I I I Received 

I I I Recieved 

I I I Recieved 

I I I Recieved 

I Total 

$2,850 

$39,000 

$41,850 

5 

139



General Certification 

By signing below, I certify that: 

I am authorized to sign this document on behalf of my organization. 

I certify that to the best of my knowledge all the information contained in this document is true and 
accurate. 

I further certify that, to the best of my knowledge. this application has been approved by the governing 
body of the organization or is otherwise being submitted using the governing body's lawful process. 

I/we/my organization has read in full and agrees to the Scappoose Community Enhancement Program 
Application Guidelines; and 

By signing this application stipulate that I/we/my organization will abide by all Federal, State, Local or 
other laws applicable to this project, or work done in completion of this project; and 

I/we/my organization agrees to submit all required post-project reporting, or be disqualified from the 
next round of Scappoose CEP funding; and 

I/we/my organization will make a representative of the project/organization available to present this 
project to City Council during Project Presentations. 

Claire Catt 

Authorized Signer Name (print) 

Executive Director 

Title 

Signature 

5/2/2022 

Date 

Ver. 2.1.2022.7 

140



May 2022 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 
URA 6pm 

City Council 7pm 

3 4 5 6 7 

8 9 10 11 12 
Planning 
Commission 
7pm 
 

13 14  
Farmers Market 
9am – 2pm 

15 16 
Work Session 
6pm 

City Council 7pm 

17 50-Year 
Stakeholder 
Advisory 
Committee 
Meeting 6pm 

18 19 EDC, noon 

Park & Rec 6pm 

20 21 
Farmers Market 
9am – 2pm 

22 23 
Budget 
Committee 
5:30 pm 

24 
Budget 
Committee 
5:30 pm 
(If needed) 

25 26 
Planning 
Commission 
7pm 

27 28 
Farmers Market 
9am – 2pm 

29 30 

City Offices 
closed 

31 
50-Year
Stakeholder
Advisory
Committee
Meeting 6pm

3.

141



June 2022 
Sunday Monday Tuesday Wednesday Thursday Friday Saturday 

1 2 3 4 
Farmers Market 
9am – 2pm 

5 6   Joint Work
Session with Planning 
Commission, 6pm

City Council 7pm 

7 8 9 
Planning 
Commission 
7pm 

10 11 
Farmers Market 
9am – 2pm 

12 13 14 15 16 17 18 
Farmers Market 
9am – 2pm 

19 20 
URA Budget mtg 
6:30pm 

City Council 7pm 

21 22 23 
Planning 
Commission 
7pm 

24 25 
Farmers Market 
9am – 2pm 

26 27 28 29 30 TO BE 
DETERMINED 
EDC  
Park & Rec  

142


	5-16-2022 agenda
	Fireworks Staff Report
	Fireworks Work Session Report FINAL
	Exhibit A
	EXHIBIT B
	Exhibit C

	5-2-2022 City Council meeting minutes
	AMANI CENTER FINAL PDF
	CASA for Children pdf
	Riverside Community Outreach
	RUN WITH NEIL
	Scappoose Adventist School
	Scappoose Community and Senior Center (SCSC)
	Scappoose Community Club
	Scappoose FBLA - Community Enhancement Program Application 2022
	Scappoose Historical Society
	Scappoose Library
	Scappoose Little League pdf
	Scappoose School Dist Justin Engstrom
	Scappoose School Dist Oregon Shakespeare Festival pdf
	Scappoose Youth Rec Center
	SMS Holiday Feather Bazaar
	Society of St Vincent dePaul St Wencelause Scappoose Conference
	United Way of Columbia County
	May & June



